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Electoral Area A: Egmont/Pender Harbour
Electoral Area Director: John Rees

Population 2,624

Growth Rate 10.5%

Dwellings 1,237 (occupied private dwellings)
Area 1,901 sqg. km.

Electoral Area B: Halfmoon Bay
Electoral Area Director: Garry Nohr

Population 2,558

Growth rate 8.7%

Dwellings 1,118 (occupied private dwellings)
Area 1,275 sq. km.

Electoral Area D: Roberts Creek
Electoral Area Director: Donna Shugar

Population 3,307

Growth rate 7%

Dwellings 1,356 (occupied private dwellings)
Area 143.6 sq. km.

Electoral Area E: Elphinstone
Electoral Area Director: Lorne Lewis

Population 3,552

Growth rate 7.3%

Dwellings 1,412 (occupied private dwellings)
Area 21 sq. km.

Electoral Area F: West Howe Sound
Electoral Area Director: Lee Turnbull

Population 2,235

Growth rate 13.4%

Dwellings 974 (occupied private dwellings)
Area 380 sqg. km.

District of Sechelt
SCRD Representative: Ed Steeves

Population 8,454 (2006 Census)
Growth rate 8.7%

Dwellings 3,853 (occupied private dwellings)
Area 39 sqg. km.

Town of Gibsons
SCRD Representative: Mayor Barry Janyk

Population 4,182

Growth rate 7.1%

Dwellings 1,880 (occupied private dwellings)
Area 4.33 sqg. km.

Sechelt Indian Government District
SCRD Representative: Acting Chief
Marita Paul-Franke

Population 827 (2006 Census)
Growth rate 4%

Dwellings 339 (occupied private dwellings)
Area 10.71 sq. km.

Cover photo Selina Statnyk
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Vision

The Sunshine Coast is a
community of communities
creating a sustainable

way of life through a
citizen-driven decision
making process.

We are committed to

an enhanced natural
context; local control over
local resources; a vibrant
economy; and an enriched
cultural fabric.

This vision will be realized
through:

¢ |local control over
resources and
development

* public awareness and
involvement

responsive and effective
government

quality recreational and
cultural amenities

* economic wellbeing

healthy and diverse
communities.
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Message from the Chair

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Sunshine Coast Regional District,

| am pleased to present the 2007 Annual Report. The Annual Report provides a
summary of our work and a full account of our financial management results.
As 2007 was the 40th anniversary for the SCRD, this report also includes some
key dates and news headlines from the past.

When the Regional District was formed in 1966, there were 8,290 people
living in the eight Zones stretching from Port Mellon to Egmont (including
Gibsons and Sechelt). Directors were appointed for the non-municipal zones, and Sechelt and
Gibsons were asked to provide representatives to sit on the Board. The SCRD was officially
established through Letters Patent on April 1, 1967, and the first election for Directors was
held in December 1967. In 1986 the Sechelt Indian Band became a unique third level of
government under the Sechelt Indian Band Self Government Act that largely replaced the
Indian Act. A SIGD representative joined SCRD Board of Directors.

According to the newspaper of the day, The Press - which sold for 7 cents a copy - the biggest
order of business at the first meeting of the Board, in June 1966, was the announcement

that the organization was in possession of all the files concerning efforts to get a garbage
collection and disposal system in place from Port Mellon to Egmont.

Forty years later, strategies to manage solid waste remain issues of significance to the Regional
District. In 2007 we received a $1 million grant to implement a system at the Sechelt Landfill
that will convert methane gas into electrical power; we also launched a coast-wide review of
our recycling services. The Board has made a commitment to sustainable practices, and with
that goal in mind we are continually seeking ways to:

* improve our solid waste and recycling services

* maintain the quality of our water and help residents reduce water consumption

* manage storm water run-off, and

* take action on climate change.

2007 was also the 25th anniversary of public transit on the Coast. When the service was
introduced in 1982, the concept plan called for Community Services to continue operating
the door-to-door mini bus from Monday to Friday from 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. Riders needed to
call ahead to book their trips on the mini bus. According to The Press “Priority is to be given
to seniors, youth and weekend commuters ... busses would be provided for the purposes

of shopping, recreation and visits to hospitals, medical and dental services.” The Plan also
called for two regular buses to operate Monday to Friday, from 8:00 a.m. — 6:00 p.m. In 2007,
the SCRD carried a total of 475,000 riders on nine busses, four of which are mini-busses,
providing bus services from 5:00 a.m. to midnight.

| would like to draw your attention to our accomplishments throughout 2007; you will find
details on the activities of the SCRD in the section of the Annual Report called Our Services,
which starts on page 13; Highlights of the Year are on page seven.

One of the most high profile activities of 2007 was the Board’s decision to constitute itself as
the Local Board of Health in response to public concerns about the impact of logging activities

April 1, 1967
* SCRD established with functions
identified as
o Regional and Community
Planning
o Contracting Services
o Local Works and Services
Also assumed responsibility for
establishing a refuse disposal
system
* December — First elections for area
directors held

1970
¢ Electoral Area E forms centennial
committee

1971

* SCRD assumed responsibility for
public area street lighting along
the highway in eight specified
areas (service for particular streets
or neighbourhoods at request of
residents)

1973

* Threat to Area Water Supply is
headline news “The SCRD Board
has recommended that access
to the Chapman Creek basin be
restricted pending the outcome of
an environmental study of the
basin.”

1981
* SCRD gets in-house computer
system

1986

* Voters Approve Restructuring —
Disband Village of Sechelt to form
District of Sechelt

* Sechelt Band becomes an
independent level of government
called the Sechelt Indian
Government District
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1990

* Summit meeting of local
governments fo address improved
ferry services, refusal of toxic waste,
coast-wide recycling and a
cooperative Sunshine Coast
economic plan

* Watershed crisis makes headlines
— SCRD Board will seek an
injunction tfo stop logging in
Chapman-Gray watershed

1992

* Rename areas fo A-Egmont/Pender
Harbour, B-Halfmoon Bay,
D-Roberts Creek, E-Elphinstone,
F-West Howe Sound

1994
¢ Advertisement: Coordinator needed
for one government talks

1995
* One government for Coast debated

1997

* SCRD gets union - Communication,
Energy & Paper workers

* Cuff report hints at one-government
direction, coast-wide services

* SCRD operations reviewed; Cuff
report leads to replacing several
senior managers

* Taxes cut as SCRD adopts final
budget

* LNG gas proposal - Gas wars

* SCRD to monitor water near logging
operation

* SCRD gearing for vote on
watershed — Referendum on
Integrated Watershed Management
Plan (IWMP)

1998

* Integrated Watershed Management
Plan defeated at referendum

* SCRD targets 3% budget allocations

* SCRD and SIB sign Watershed
Accord

* Greater Gibsons Community
Partnership Funding Grants initiated

o
e

in the Chapman Creek Watershed. This move to control logging in the Watershed was part

of a long-term and ongoing strategy by the Board to protect the drinking water supply for

the majority of residents on the Sunshine Coast. When the Board issued a Stop Work Order
against Western Forest Products we didnt know that our actions would become the focus of
national interest, but we did know that trying to protect our drinking water was the right thing
to do. Unfortunately, the order was overturned by the Supreme Court; however, the Board’s
action highlighted the need for local government control of drinking water. As a result, a
Provincial Drinking Water Task Force was established, and the issue of local control over local
resources has taken on a significant role in Provincial and local government relations. The
Board will continue to address this very important issue in the years ahead.

The Sunshine Coast has grown significantly since 1967, and yet in many ways we remain

the same. We are a community of communities, and even though we share many of the

same concerns such as managing growth, improving our public services and protecting our
environment, we also look after the individual community needs of each Electoral Area and
Municipality along our 86-kms. of coastline. The SCRD has become a large organization and
the issues we manage are increasingly complex. The eight elected representatives sitting on the
Board must balance the needs of their individual communities with the needs of the region as
a whole, and that can be a challenging task.

With an annual budget exceeding $54 million, and responsibility for providing services
through more than 100 different functions to our nearly 28,000 full-time residents, we are
continually searching for the best ways to manage our services. In October, we introduced a
Strategic Directions Plan that identified our five goals for the coming year. The Plan outlines
actions for each goal; progress on these action items will be measured and reported back to
the Board. Our Strategic Directions Plan is on page five of this report.

The Board of Directors is committed to working with residents and staff to manage our
resources and services so we can ensure that current and future residents will continue to enjoy
the quality of life that is the hallmark of the Coast.

I'd like to thank the Directors and the staff of the SCRD for their ongoing commitment to
serving the residents of the Sunshine Coast. The excellence of their efforts is demonstrated
throughout this report, and in the work they do each and every day.
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Ed Sfeevres,
Chair.
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Message from the C.A.O. T
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-I-he SCRD has been around for 40 years, and it has gone through many changes in that ST
time, but | think it would be hard to find a year with as many changes and challenges as we ’
experienced in 2007. Some of the more significant events of the past year include:

* Managing the issues related to the watersheds

* Taking over management of old recreation facilities and building new ones

* Implementing the Board’s Strategic Directions Plan

* Increasing our transit services

* Introducing new technology to help us manage the increasing demands across the
organization

* Working on the Land Resource Management Plan, and

* Implementing Phase One of the Regional Growth Strategy

The demand for SCRD services has grown steadily over the years—in 1966 there were 8,490
people living on the Sunshine Coast, by 1986 that number had doubled to 16,634. By
2006 our population had increased to 27,759, triple the population from when the SCRD Ociober. 1982
was formed. The Board has provided the resources needed to respond to increasing service '

requests, and staff have excelled at providing the public with the best services possible. LETTERS m— rteaints
| am proud of the people who work at the SCRD; they do their very best in what can s‘:“n [ RPE e

1
sometimes be challenging circumstances, and | thank each and every one of them for their e s T
hard work and dedication. '

Id like to note that you will find lists of historical events throughout this report; they are not e S .
a complete review of the SCRD since it was formed, rather they are a snapshot of 40 years e et

of service. This look back gives us a chance to consider the past and present, and to wonder e VT
what changes the future holds. R '

Given that our population projections say we could see another 7,000 people living here by TR ST S
2036, we can assume that the next decade will bring more changes. In closing, | look forward MR e iy
to working with all of you in 2008, and to continuing the SCRD’s good work in serving the -
residents of the Sunshine Coast.

March 5, 1995

. e,
v € governm
John France, rnl' cnﬂSt debﬂ

Chief Administrative Officer



Board of Directors

Front Row: Left to Right:
Marita Paul-Franke
Sechelt Indian
Government District

Lee Turnbull
Area F - West Howe Sound

Barry Janyk
Town of Gibsons,

Donna Shugar (Vice-Chair)
Area D - Roberts Creek

Back Row: Left to Right
Lorne Lewis
Area E - Elphinstone

Garry Nohr
Area B - Halfmoon Bay

Ed Steeves (Chair)
District of Sechelt

John Rees
Area A — Egmont/
Pender Harbour

The Board of Directors is made up of eight
directors, one from each electoral area and
member municipalities. Electoral Area Directors
are elected for a three-year term; Municipal
Directors from the Town of Gibsons, the District of
Sechelt, and Sechelt Indian Government District
are appointed by their Councils. Board meetings
are held twice a month and are open to the public.

Standing Committees of the Board
Every December, a Chair and Vice-Chair are elected from among the eight Directors. The
Chair is then responsible for appointing the Chairs for the Standing Committees of the Board.

Corporate and Administrative Services Committee

Chair: John Rees Vice-Chair: Garry Nohr

Purpose: To consider corporate and administrative functions, and make recommendations
to the Board on things such as; administrative bylaws, budgets, corporate strategic planning,
grants-in-aid, five-year financial plans, human resources, and information technology.

Community Services Committee

Chair: Lee Turnbull Vice-Chair: Lorne Lewis

Purpose: To consider community services functions and issues, and make recommendations
to the Board on things such as; parks and recreation facilities and programs, building permits
and inspections, fire protection, emergency program, 9-1-1 service, bicycle/walking paths,
cemeteries, economic development and tourism.

Planning and Development Committee

Chair: Donna Shugar Vice-Chair: John Rees

Purpose: To consider environmental, land use, and development issues and make
recommendations to the Board on things such as; bylaw compliance, natural resources
and land related issues, rural and regional planning and Geographic Information Systems
(mapping services)-

Infrastructure Services Committee

Chair: Garry Nohr Vice-Chair: Marita Paul-Franke

Purpose: To consider infrastructure related items and make recommendations to the Board
on things such as; public transit, water quality and conservation, water works and wastewater
management, solid waste management, building maintenance, ports operations, and street
lighting.

Providing 40 years of service



Strategic Directions Plan

Introduction

The Sunshine Coast Regional District is experiencing rapid growth which is resulting in an
increasing demand for services, while placing pressures on the natural environment. The
estimated growth rate for residential property values is 2.7% for the rural areas; 1.8% for the
Town of Gibsons; and 4.9% for the District of Sechelt.

In 2007, the Board recognized the need to develop a strategic plan to guide the direction
of the organization and to consolidate the many elements of planning that are done
independently by different departments (e.g. recreational facilities and park development).
They also acknowledged the importance of many initiatives; however, they decided that five
key strategic directions required more attention at this time.

Vision

The Sunshine Coast is a community of communities creating a sustainable way of life through
a citizen-driven decision making process. We are committed to an enhanced natural context,
local control over local resources, a vibrant economy, and an enriched cultural fabric.

The vision will be realized through:
* local control over resources and development
* public awareness and involvement
* responsive and effective government
* quality recreational and cultural amenities
* economic wellbeing
* healthy and diverse communities

Proposed Guiding Principles

* The Board will be proactive in working on their strategic priorities.

* The Board will operate with a collective vision that reflects the diversity of values of the
various communities.

* The Board will strive to achieve the highest standards of service in all its programs and
initiatives.

* The Board will become a learning organization and will regularly discuss external
and internal trends and emerging issues, as well as learn from other communities and
organizations.

Strategic Priorities (2007/08)

The Board agreed to focus its priorities on the following five areas:

1. Managing and Sustaining Growth and Development:
* To complete Phase One of the Regional Growth Strategy
* To plan for the LRMP and coordinate this process with the Regional Growth Strategy
* To coordinate the required revisions of local Official Community Plans with the
Regional Growth Strategy process

1967
* Water reserve on Chapman Creek
and Tributaries transferred to SCRD

1973

* Headwaters of Chapman Creek
removed from Timber License due
to SCRD concerns

* SCRD board seeks injunction to stop
logging in Chapman Gray
Watershed

1992

* Board seeks authority to restrict
public vehicular access to lower
Chapman Valley watershed

* Tetrahedron Plateau placed in
watershed reserve

* Board seeks injunction to halt
logging in Chapman drainage area
until integrated water management
plan complete

* Board seeks legal advice on
stopping use of fertilizers in
watershed

1993

* Application made to ministry to
lease the Chapman watershed and
become tenants similar to GVRD
and CRD agreements

1994

* 1,800 signature petition that SCRD
be holder of management lease for
Chapman and Gray Creek area.

1995

* Board wants the province fo pay
for a project manager for watershed
restoration program in Chapman
Gray.

1998

* Province’s Integrated Watershed
Management Plan defeated in
Referendum

1999

* Board recommends denying IFP
five-year plan until critical watershed
issues are resolved to the
satisfaction of the residents

2000

* SCRD declares they are not in
favour of logging in the watershed
reserves and direct staff to look into
legal options to prevent logging in
watershed reserves

* Request Ministry of Forests exclude
land in all designated watersheds
and reserves from timber harvesting
land base calculations

2001

* Board asks legal counsel to review
Drinking Water Protection Act fo see
if SCRD can protect watershed

2007 Sunshine Coast Regional District Annual Report



2002

* Legal counsel asks for Judicial
review of Chief Forester’s decision
fo increase allowable cut on
Sunshine Coast

* MoF denies moratorium on logging
in watershed

* 5,082 signature petition requesting
prohibition of industrial activities in
watershed

2004

* UBCM emergency resolution to
give local governments authority
over watershed

2005

* Source Assessement ordered by
Drinking Water Protection Officer

* SCRD and SIB sign Watershed
Accord

2006

* SCRD asks Sunshine Coast
Forest District Manager to support
resolution to indicate lack of local
and government support for
logging in watershed

2007

* Ask Drinking Water Officer to
develop a drinking water protection
plan

* Letter to Triton Engineering
requesting confirmation of imminent
threat to watershed

* Complaint of health hazard received
under Section 37 of the Health Act

* SCRD forms Local Board of Health
(July 12)

* SCRD issues stop work order
(Aug. 11)

* WFP files Notice of Appeal (Aug. 14)

* Supreme Court rescinds Order
(Oct. 9)

* Water quality testing conducted

* SIB request halt to logging on
watershed lands.

* Provincial Joint Watershed Team
forum for resolving land use issues
in Watershed.

* CNI suggests exchange
of watershed land for other
considerations

* Ombudsman will investigate
drinking water safety

2007

* SCRD completes mapping project to
identify watersheds and use

* SCRD measuring water reserves in
Chapman Lake

2. Protecting Our Water, Aquifers and Watersheds - Ensuring Clean
and Safe Drinking Water for All Areas:

* To seek local authority over community watersheds through a joint agreement with
the Province

* To develop a Drinking Water Protection Plan for Chapman, Gray and other
significant watersheds on the Coast

* To expand the 10-Year Water Plan, with 25 year projections in areas of source
development

3. Providing Proactive and Collaborative Leadership:
* To enhance relations with other jurisdictions and organizations, including the District
of Sechelt, Town of Gibsons and the Sechelt Indian Band
* To become a learning organization by; integrating strategic and financial planning,
producing an annual report card, and improving the organization’s effectiveness in
time management, meetings and priority setting
* To develop an effective internal and external communications strategy

4. Addressing Infrastructure Challenges and Needs:
* To develop an effective waste management program by; reducing solid waste by
5% per year, expanding the landfill; and exploring having developers pay for the
future cost of their waste management
* To plan for the expansion of the water filtration plant and increase water storage
capacity
* To develop a plan to implement the Climate Action Plan

5. Providing Effective and Accessible Transportation:

* To develop a Comprehensive Transportation Plan in conjunction with the Regional
Growth Strategy

* To implement the Transit Business Plan by; increasing public transit ridership by 5%
per annum, lobbying for additional transportation funding from senior levels of
government, and gauging the public’s support for higher taxes to improve transit
services

* To collaborate with the Ministry of Transportation on a five-year road
development program

* Continue to develop enhanced cycling infrastructure and pedestrian walkways as
part of the transportation network

Providing 40 years of service



Highlights of the Year

Our 40th anniversary was a big year for the SCRD. There were many
accomplishments, some moments of triumph and some disappointments — it
was a year most of us won't forget.

The Board of Directors intfroduced a Strategic Directions Plan that identified
five key goals and the actions required to meet those goals. The five goals
identified in the plan can be found on page five of this report.

The Board’s Vision Statement “The Sunshine Coast is a community of
communities creating a sustainable way of life through a citizen-driven
decision making process. We are committed to an enhanced natural context;
local control over local resources; a vibrant economy; and an enriched
cultural fabric,” established the objectives for the Strategic Directions Plan. The
Plan is also an accountability tool that will allow us to measure our progress
on each of the actions identified under the five goals. The 2008 annual report
will provide a measure of our success in meeting the goals of the Strategic
Directions Plan.

The Board’s vision statement has guided our decisions for creating a sustainable way of life for
our communities. Our sustainability actions in 2007 included:

* Developing a Stewardship, Conservation and Sustainable Services Division

¢ Signing the B.C. Climate Action Charter and making a commitment to carbon
neutrality by 2020
Introducing an on-line property mapping information system, along with the
Geographic Information System
Starting a project at the Sechelt Landfill, which involves capturing methane gas and
converting it to electrical power
Introducing Green Shores planning principles to protect vulnerable foreshores
Supporting affordable community housing — a key element in sustainable
community development — by donating refundable cans and bottles from our
recycling depots to Habitat for Humanity. (Habitat has won the Alcan Award for
recycling the most used aluminum beverage cans per capita, in Canada.)

One of the major initiatives of 2007 was our response to community concerns about logging
in the Chapman Creek watershed. The SCRD Board of Directors constituted itself as a Local
Board of Health under the Health Act, and after a lengthy review process issued a Stop

Work Order against Western Forest Products. Unfortunately, the order was overturned by

the Supreme Court; however, the Board’s action highlighted the need for local government
control of water sources, and triggered further Provincial Government action on drinking water
protection strategies.

2007 Sunshine Coast Regional District Annual Report



As a result of the 2005 Recreation Referendum, significant changes were implemented in the
Parks and Recreation area. Key activities in 2007 include:
* The SCRD assuming management of the Sechelt Arena and the Gibsons Pool
* Introducing ActiveNet, the online registration program for recreation activities
* Opening the $10 million Sechelt Aquatic Facility
* Continuing construction on the $12.3 million Gibsons and Area Community
Centre.
« Starting restoration on the Roberts Creek Pier
* Beginning work on the Pender Harbour soccer field
* Making improvements to the warming hut, equipment shed, and snowshoeing trails
in the Dakota Ridge Winter Recreation Area
* Implementing the Master Plan for Trails and Walkways

The SCRD was successful in obtaining the following funding grants in 2007.

Amount Purpose Funds Provided By

$1,083,540 Capture methane gas at the Sechelt Gas Tax Program:
Landfill and convert the gas to electrical Innovations Fund
energy

$1 M Grant & Securing Drinking water quality and Federation of Canadian

1M quantity in Area A (Egmont/Pender Municipalities

(low-interest loan) | Harbour)

$1,825,600 Phase One of the Area-A Drinking Water | Gas Tax Program:
Program; this fund addresses small General Strategic
community systems currently on boil water | Priorities Fund
advisories

$232,994 Community programs such as Community | UBCM: Local
Tourism, Seniors Housing, Crystal Meth Government Program
Response and West Nile Risk Reduction; Services Grants

most of these grants were administered in
partnership with community agencies.

$80,000 Emergency Services Vehicle Joint Emergency
Preparedness Program
Tsunami Preparedness Project and PEP
$41,000 Regional Growth Strategy — Phase 1 Smart Development

Partnerships: B.C. Govt.

$128, 400 Transit: Bus Shelters and Pull-Offs Gas Tax Program
Public Transit
Infrastructure Program

$20,000 Phase 2 Integrated Storm Water Ministry of Community
Management Planning & Services: Local
Pender Harbour Water Treatment Study Government Planning
Grants

Details on the programs and services provided by the SCRD are in the Our Services section,
pages 15-32. A full report of our financial activities is provided in the Financial Section, pages
33-84.

8 Providing 40 years of service



Message from the Treasurer

Iom pleased to present, on behalf of the Corporate Services Department, the Sunshine Coast
Regional District’s 2007 Annual Financial Report. As Treasurer, | am committed to ensuring
that the highest standard of accounting and financial reporting is maintained for the Sunshine
Coast Regional District. These financial reports are reflective of the open and transparent
manner in which we operate. Our goal is to enhance stakeholder confidence.

For the fourth consecutive year, the Government Finance Officers Association awarded the
Canadian Award for Financial Reporting (CanFR) to the Regional District’s Corporate Services
Department for achievement of the high standards for Canadian government accounting and
financial reporting. This is one of only thirty-nine CanFR’s awarded across Canada, of which
only two awards were presented to Regional Districts. This award emphasizes the Finance
Department’s commitment to achieving excellence.

Meeting Challenges

The Regional District is experiencing rapid growth, which in turn, creates increased demand for
services. According to the 2006 Census, the population of the Regional District grew by 8.4%
between 2002 and 2006, which makes the SCRD the third fastest growing regional district in
the Province. BC Assessment statistics for non-market changes indicate a growth in residential
property values of 2.7% for the rural areas, 1.89% for the Town of Gibsons, and 4.9% for the
District of Sechelt.

Between 2006 and 2008 there was a 20% rise in overall property values each year;
Area A - Egmont/Pender Harbour and Area B - Halfmoon Bay experienced the highest rate
increases on the Coast.

The Board and management recognize the need for balance between managing growth, the
provision of services, and minimizing taxation. The Regional District continues to respond to
these challenges.

2007 in Review

This Annual Report provides an overview of the SCRD’s roles and responsibilities and
highlights some of the accomplishments for 2007; there is also an overview of each of the 39
distinct types of services the Regional District provides through 108 separate functions.

Financial Overview

Included in this report are the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ending

December 31, 2007, in accordance with section 814 of the Local Government Act and section
167 of the Community Charter. These statements have been prepared in accordance with
Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and public sector accounting standards.

A key indicator in assessing the financial well-being of a local government is net debt,
calculated as the difference between the liabilities and financial assets. This number bears
directly on future revenue requirements and the local government’s ability to finance its
activities and meet its financial commitments. The second key indicator of financial wellbeing is

2007 Sunshine Coast Regional District Annual Report 9



Net Financial Assets (net debt) the value of the non-financial assets held by the local government.
Together, the net debt and the non-financial assets comprise the
10,000,000 1 financial position for the SCRD.
5,000,000 |
-] = The net debt of the Regional District has increased significantly
(5,000,000)1 over the past two years. This increase is representative of funding
Sg’gggggg;: the Community Recreation Facilities, for which a total of $19
(201000:000)— million in debt was approved by referendum in 2005. These
(25’000,000),_ funds were borrowed in advance of construction and held in an
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 investment account until required. In 2007, nearly $13 million of
the borrowed funds were drawn down.
Financial Position _
The financial position of the Regional District has seen significant
increases; 7.2% in 2007 and 31% over a five-year period.
nggsgggg Reserves have increased by over $429,000 in 2007 and the
50,000,000 | investment in non-financial assets (capital) has increased by $17.5
40,000,000 million, again due to the construction of the recreation facilities.
30,000,000 |
20,000,000 On the operations side, revenues overall were on target with the
10,000,000 1 budget, while expenditures were lower than projected. Significant
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 variances are as follows:
Revenues: (compared to 2006 actuals)
* Property taxation increased by 6.4% ($673,823)
* User Fees were up by 19% ($323,189 increase in landfill tipping
fees, and $792,491 in new fee revenue for the recreation facilities).
Capital Expenditures: (compared to budget)
* $200,529 for Emergency Telephone 9-1-1 system upgrades not completed
by year end
* $3 million for the Gibsons & Area Community Center construction and
equipment purchases that were not completed by year end.
On behalf of the Corporate Services Department, | extend my appreciation to the members of the Board and staff
for their efforts in making 2007 a successful year in terms of accomplishing the Board’s goals. | particularly wish to
thank the finance staff for their hard work and dedication to making this report a truly useful document. The reason
for our success is our employee’s strong commitment to excellence.
Finally, it is my hope that the report will become a reference for information, both financial and statistical, for the
Board, staff, and residents of the Sunshine Coast, and a measure of our success in accomplishing the Board’s goals
and objectives.
Respectfully,
N\ e
S g TN TY S g
F J_gJJn Merrick, CGA
Treasurer
Dated: June 2008
10 Providing 40 years of service



Five-Year Financial Plan

The five-year plan is required under Section 815 of the Local Government Act, and is to be adopted annually by March 31st.
The financial plan may be amended by bylaw at any time. The SCRD Board must undertake a process of public consultation
regarding the Financial Plan before it is adopted. The Local Government Act does not specify the format of the public
consultation process, and it may be varied at the Board’s discretion to suit the local community.

The public consultation process on the SCRD's five-year financial plan consisted of a thorough review of the draft plan by the
Board in open public meetings, held between December and March. The revised draft was then presented to the public at
Open House meetings. In March, a last round of open Board meetings were held to review the proposed final draft. The final

version of the five-year plan was adopted on March 27th, 2008 through Bylaw # 610.

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

REVENUES
Property Taxes $11,563,549 13,788,383 13,678,400 14,099,433 14,233,592
Parcel Taxes 3,994,654 4,152,532 4,297,828 4,452,370 4,616,758
Frontage Taxes 71,215 69,980 66,580 61,700 61,700
Grants in Lieu 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000 48,000
Unconditional Transfers 162,000 190,000 120,000 120,000 120,000
Conditional Transfers 2,706,667 1,130,000 725,000 675,000 650,000
Sales of Services 6,064,977 6,457,739 6,712,160 6,880,617 7,090,099
Other Revenue Own Sources 11,381,435 10,027,698 11,204,896 9,688,771 10,332,703
Other Transfers 6,367,810 1,586,820 1,261,463 1,489,225 1,369,528
Surpluses 1,436,464 0 0 0 0
$43,796,771 37,451,151 38,114,328 37,515,116 38,522,381
General Gov't Services $5,441,063 5,491,568 5,331,482 5,425,126 5,429,708
Fiscal Services 1,094,796 1,075,750 1,064,462 1,025,528 1,025,528
Protective Services 3,025,350 2,761,733 3,502,219 2,772,731 3,443,717
Transportation Services 4,211,451 4,221,767 4,244,806 4,257,800 4,303,531
Infrastructure Services 11,998,476 11,202,331 11,068,979 11,182,958 11,387,842
Public Health Services 215,090 235,789 234,084 236,228 238,431
Planning and Dev. Services 2,591,325 2,836,878 3,058,696 2,951,789 2,887,520
Recreation and Cultural Service 15,219,220 9,625,335 9,609,601 9,662,955 9,806,105
$43,796,771 37,451,151 38,114,328 37,515,116 38,522,381
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Organizational Chart




Our Services

Coast-wide services are delivered to residents through 108 different functions, which are
provided by three departments, Community Services, Infrastructure Services and Corporate

and Administrative Services.

Infrastructure Services Department

Sustainability Services
Water Management
Recycling

Solid Waste Management
Public Transit

Ports

Community Services Department

Parks and Recreation

Protective Services
Emergency program
Fire services
Dog control
Bylaw enforcement
Building permits and inspections
Planning and Development
Mapping

Economic Devlepment

Hillside Industrial Park

Corporate and Administrative Services

Legislative Services

Human Resources

Information Technology

Financial Services

Records Management

Electoral Approval and Assent Processes
Communications Services
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Official opening of the Sechelt Aquatic Facility - November 24, 2007 photo courtesy Coast Reporter
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Corporate and Administrative Services

Corporate and Administrative Services Department
Department Head: John France, Chief Administrative Officer

The primary focus of our work in 2007 was managing issues related to the watershed,
upgrading our technology, aligning accounting systems with the new recreation computer
programs, hiring staff for the new recreation facilities, and finding a place to put our expanded
workforce. Our key activities for the year included:

*  Providing legislative and administrative support to the Board during the Local Board
of Health hearings on logging in the Chapman Creek Watershed

* Implementing the Board’s Strategic Directions Plan

*  Completing the transition to a new phone system and installing computers and
phones at the Sechelt Aquatic Facility

*  Working with the Infrastructure Services Division to develop a capital asset inventory
and management system strategy

*  Managing the human resources needs and financial systems adaptations for the
Sechelt Aquatic Facility as well as for the Sechelt Arena and Gibsons Pool; 67 new
employees were hired in 2007 — out of a total of 235 workers employed by the SCRD
at the end of 2007

Legislative Services Division
Division Head: Joan Harrison (January - December)
Angie Legault, Manager & Corporate Officer

This past year (2007) was a very busy time for the department; one of our biggest projects was
managing the legislative and legal information needed to assist the Board with constituting
itself as a Local Board of Health. This action allowed the Board to address concerns about
drinking water safety in the Chapman Creek Watershed.

Every department of the SCRD was involved in the watershed issue; Planning and
Development, Parks, Infrastructure Services and Finance, all had a role to play in researching
and providing information — and staff from the Administrative Services Devision coordinated
that information for the Board. Managing the thousands of pages of documents needed

for everything from notifying witnesses to recording the minutes from days of hearings and
countless hours of meetings, as well as preparing and responding to all the correspondence
related to the case, was the responsibility of the Legislative and Administrative Services staff.

Some of our milestones this year include:
*  Assisting the Board with developing their Strategic Directions Plan — a first for the
SCRD
*  Updating our records management classification system
¢ Collaborating on the development of a new SCRD web site
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Administration and Legislative Services Division: Services

The Administration Department, which includes Corporate Administration, Legislative Services,
Records Management and Communications, is responsible for:
*  Providing support to the Board, including preparation and coordination of Board
meetings, agendas and minutes

*  Providing support to the Board’s appointed committees
e Directing and coordinating corporate policies, strategies and objectives

*  Administering the corporate records management program and the Freedom of
Information and Protection of Privacy Act

*  Composing bylaws, minutes and legal notices and providing education regarding
current government legislation

*  Administering statutory corporate administration functions, including legal document
execution, and certification of bylaws, minutes and resolutions

e Conducting Local Government Elections and/or byelections when required

*  Administering elector approval processes including referendums and alternative
approval processes

e Coordinating and supporting public information processes through developing
communications plans and managing media releases, advertising, and the web site

*  Mail collection and distribution

Financial Services Division
Division Head: Joan Merrick, Treasurer
Jackie Day, Manager, Financial Services and Deputy Treasurer

The award winning team in this department has once again been recognized for their ability to
clearly account for how tax dollars are spent. This is the fourth time that the Corporate Services
Department has won the Canadian Award for Financial Reporting from the Government
Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada.

Other highlights for the year include:

*  Working with the Infrastructure Services Division to develop a capital asset inventory
and management strategy, and using this information to apply for federal/provincial
funding to implement a computerized asset and maintenance management system

*  Developing financial processes, aligning new computer programs with accounting
programs, and managing the increased workloads associated with expanding the
recreation facilities and hiring 67 new staff for various positions within the SCRD

*  Procurement of all the fixtures, furnishing and equipment associated with expansions
in recreation facilities and other service areas
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Financial Services: Overview

The Corporate Services Department manages the financial operations and purchasing services
for the SCRD. Under the guidance of the Treasurer, the division supports the rest of the SCRD
with managing all aspects of the budget, which in 2007 was $54 million.

The financial and purchasing services provided by the Division include:

Managing all financial services in compliance with bylaws, policies and statutory
requirements

Supporting the Board of Directors on matters relating to the budget and providing
public and media information on budgets and taxes

Providing financial services support to all departments in the SCRD

Managing the ongoing requirement for funding of the Sunshine Coast Regional
Hospital District’s capital projects

Managing the Grants-In-Aid program

Reviewing and signing all federal and provincial grant applications within the context
of the SCRD budget forecasts and cross-department tracking

Managing purchasing, insurance and risk management for the SCRD

Managing financial systems including; general ledger, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, and payroll

Financial reporting

Managing the financial planning process and preparing the five-year financial plan

Reviewing annual budget requirements and current statistical data to prepare the tax
requisition and bylaws required each year

Managing the direct public service requirements at head office, which include

o directing phone calls, and the public coming to the head office, to the right
department; helping callers reach the correct external contacts in areas
such as municipal government services, federal and provincial agencies and
private sector businesses

©  processing payments for numerous public services such as; building and
development fees, mapping and house numbering fees, utility services, water
connection fees, burning permits, bus passes and tickets, dog licenses and
impound fees, and tags for extra garbage pick-up

Purchasing Services
Robert McKee - Purchasing Officer

Purchasing Services include:

Risk management, including managing all the insurance needs for the SCRD
Overseeing the purchasing needs for the Regional District, including tendering
Requests for Proposals and managing related contractual documents.
Managing all purchasing processes

Managing security services
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Information Technology Division: Highlights
Division Head: Sharon Heppner, Manager

Growth throughout the organization created a significant increase in service requirements

for the Information Technology Division. By the end of 2007 we were providing support to
approximately 240 staff, 155 phones, and 145 computers, as well numerous computer related
devices. These services are scattered across 15 sites in the Regional District.

We completed the transition to a new phone system; all Regional District phones from Gibsons
to Pender Harbour are now on the same system.

Other achievements this year include:

* Installing fibre connections for our computer and phone systems, which is near completion

*  Providing Blackberry technology to users as required

e Transferring all contracts for cellular phones to a single service provider thereby
achieving cost savings

*  Redeveloping our website, which is scheduled to go live in 2008

e Starting development of an Intranet for internal communications, which is scheduled
to be online in 2008

*  Replacing our aging servers, and upgrading PCs to industry standards

Information Technology Division: Services
*  Providing support for desktop pcs, and related peripherals
*  Maintaining servers
*  Providing support for the VoIP phone system
*  Managing network connectivity to all of our sites

Human Resources Division: Highlights
Division Head: Sharon Munro, Manager

It was a busy year for the Human Resource Division. We posted 108 positions during 2007, and managed
the inferviews, reference checks and benefits packages required for postings. We hired 67 new staff
members and coordinated the provision of computers, phones, desks and office space realignments for
these positions. Throughout the year we worked on contract negotiations with our unionized employees,
and managed changes in several human resources process and benefit provisions. As of December 31,
2007, there were 235 positions in the SCRD, 20 of whom are exempt from the union.

Human Resource Services

Human Resources leads and supports the organization in creating and sustaining a vibrant,
healthy, safe, and high performance workforce that provides excellent service and programs to
the residents of the Sunshine Coast.

As the second largest employer on the Coast, the SCRD offers a wide variety of employment
opportunities for professional, technical, skilled trade and general service workers. Human
Resources coordinates the movement of employees from on-call and part-time positions to full-
time positions. We also manage all the paper work and organization of temporary employees
who may be needed when there are long and short-term illness or parental leave positions
requiring back-up services.

We provide the following services:
* Recruitment
* Training and development
* Compensation and benefits administration
* Occupational health and safety programs
* Employee and labour relations
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Community Services

Community Services Department Highlights
Department Head: Paul Fenwick, General Manager

2007 was a very busy year in all areas of Community Services, our most significant achievements
were:

* Taking on management of the Gibsons Pool and Sechelt Arena and opening the
Sechelt Aquatic Facility

* Providing web mapping through the introduction of the free OPIS (Online Property
Management System) and the extended, subscription-based, PIMS (Property
Information and Mapping System)

* Introducing information on Green Shores principles to help protect the shoreline in
Roberts Creek

* Mapping the Sunshine Coast watersheds to identify boundaries, active water
licences, community watersheds/watershed reserves and forest licensee operating
areas, as well as existing roads and cutblocks

* Implementing research for Phase One of the Regional Growth Strategy

* Completing the OCP review for Area E - Elphinstone

* Updating information for the review of the Area F - West Howe Sound and
Area D - Roberts Creek OCPs.

* Completing phase two of the Integrated Storm Water Management Plans for West
Howe Sound, Elphinstone and East Roberts Creek.

* Managing nearly $233,000 in grants for several community programs such as
Community Tourism, Seniors Housing, Crystal Meth Response and West Nile Risk
Reduction; most of these grants were administered in partnership with community
agencies

* Purchasing a Mobile Command Unit vehicle for the Emergency Program

* Completion of the Wildfire Risk Assessment Project for selected SCRD parks

¢ Construction of the Egmont Fire Department Hall and inclusion of this volunteer fire
department as a service under the SCRD

Community Services Department: Overview of Services
The Community Service Department provides several areas of service through four primary
divisions:

* The Parks and Recreation Division is responsible for recreation and parks facilities
and programs, rental of halls, cemeteries, bicycle and walking paths, and joint-use
of schools agreements

¢ The Planning Division is responsible for rural and regional planning, property
information, house numbering, and mapping

* The Building Division is responsible for building inspections, bylaw regulations and
animal control

* Protective Services includes; fire departments, Emergency Programs, and
9-1-1 services

* Economic Development includes supporting community groups, and managing
Hillside Industrial Park.

1974

* SCRD assumed responsibility for
cemeteries

* Emergency program function added
to Regional District

1976
* Joint community use of schools
function added to SCRD

1981

* Economic Development function
added

* SCRD assumes administrative
services for Halfmoon Bay and
Roberts Creek Volunteer Fire
Departments

1985
* Animal Control function added to
SCRD

1986
* Economic Development
Commission Formed

1988
* Municipalities can withdraw from
Economic Development Function

1989
* Commercial Land Development for
Hillside Industrial Park approved

1991
* SCRD begins Hillside Project
construction

1994

* ICGs propane tanks removed
from Roberts Creek, taken to
Hillside Industrial Park

1995

* Premier opens Hillside Park

1996

* 911 phone system comes fo coast
(Aug. 9¢)

* Final report reveals soaring costs of
ferry-to-ferry bike path - $7.2 million

1997
* Hillside celebrated after five years
of SCRD management )
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Recreation Parks and Recreation Division: Highlights

1978 Division Head: Randy Udahl, Manager

* Regional Recreation Referendum Gibsons Area Recreation Manager: Carleen MacDowell
(defeated) Sechelt Area Recreation Manager: Bruce Bauman

1986 Pender Harbour Aquatic and Fitness Centre Manager: Deb Cole

* SCRD proposes holding referendum
for joint operation of Sechelt Arena 2007 was a year of triumphs and challenges for Parks and Recreation; we more than

1993 tripled the number of people working in the department — because we tripled the number of
* Coast Recreation Commission recreation facilities we manage and implemented aspects of the Parks Master Plan and the
taking shape Trails Network Plan. Some of our achievements over the year include:
1997
* Referendum on new pool and * Taking on management of the Sechelt Arena and the Gibsons Pool and opening
muli-use facilify (defeated) the Sechelt Aquatic Facility
2001 * Beginning work on the Pender Harbour Soccer Field located at Lions Park.
* Referendum for Community Centre * Continuing with improvements to the snowshoeing trails, warming huts and
— Halfmoon Bay & Sechelf equipment shed at the Dakota Ridge Winter Recreation Area
(defeated) * Initiating restoration work on the Roberts Creek Pier
2005 * Ongoing implementation of the Parks Master Plan and the Trails Network Plan
* Referendum for new facilities
(passed) . ... .
+ Dakofa Ridge Atternative Approval ~ P@rks and Recreation Division: Services
Process passes for building trails Parks and Recreation is a significant service area for the SCRD, accounting for 42.6% of
(passed) property taxes collected by the Regional District. The Division:
2006 * Provides over 200 recreation programs annually
* Ground breaking for Sechelf * Manages and maintains 34 regional district parks and two campgrounds
Aquatic Faciliy * Operates the Sechelt Aquatic Facility, the Sechelt Arena, the Gibsons Pool and the
2007 Pender Harbour Aquatic and Fitness Centre
* Sechelt Aquatic Facility opens * Manages Chaster House, Frank West Hall, Eric Cardinal Hall and Coopers Green
Hall

* Maintains and manages sports fields in Cliff Gilker Park, Shirley Macey Park,
Connor Park and Maryanne West Park.
* Manages the Seaview Cemetery and maintains the Kleindale Cemetery

Expanding recreation services and building new facilities has been a goal for residents of the
Sunshine Coast since the 1970’s. After numerous referendums,
formations and dissolution of recreation committees, and reviews
of options, the goal became a reality in 2007 with the opening
of the Sechelt Aquatic Facility. The Gibsons and Area Community
Centre was also entering the final stages of construction in 2007.

In order to successfully manage the more than 200 recreation
and sports programs offered by the SCRD, as well as coordinate
the bookings at various community halls, the Division introduced
ActiveNet registration. This online booking program, which is used
by recreation and sports providers across North America, allows
people to register and pay for programs from home computers.

With ActiveNet, people who regularly use the pools or fitness
rooms can simply purchase a pass and swipe the electronic reader
when they use any of the facilities — no more standing in line to
pay and enter. ActiveNet is also an environmentally friendly system, people don’t have to drive
to the SCRD to check on program availability or to register, it is all done online.
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Recreation Activities
The SCRD has introduced a variety of active lifestyle programs everywhere on the Coast,
there’s something for every age group and ability level — all year long. Our partnerships with
community schools ensure that there’s something in every community, and for every interest.
We offer:
¢ Fitness and strength building classes and equipment
* Swimming lessons, lengths, family fun and pool exercise classes
* Yoga, meditation, courses on living well and aging gracefully
* |ce rink activities from skating to hockey — for all ages
* Arts and Culture programs including, dance, music, acting/performing, visual arts,
writing and textiles
* Outdoor activities such as boating safety, fishing, kayaking, nature hikes, bird
watching, cross-country skiing and snowshoeing
* Cooking, gardening and computer courses
* First-aid courses, babysitting courses, lifeguard training
* Programs for kids of all ages, with a wide variety of options meant to attract young
people and get them involved in healthy and fun activities
* Ball sports of all types

With a commitment to building healthy communities, the SCRD recreation programmers are
always interested in offering new courses that will interest residents of all ages. The Parks &
Recreation guide to programs and services is prepared three times a year; it is an excellent
resource. The guide is always available on line at www.scrd.ca.

SCRD Parks Master Plan

Outdoor activities are essential for a healthy lifestyle. The SCRD operates parks in every
electoral area along the Coast and given our temperate climate, most of these parks are used
throughout the year.

The Parks Master Plan, completed in 2004, was developed by a Board appointed committee.
The Plan’s recommendations have been put into action since 2005, with several projects
beginning in 2007.

One of the key recommendations in the Master Plan was to develop a trails plan. A committee
with representatives from each Electoral Area was appointed by the Board, and a Trails
Network Plan was completed in January 2007. Implementation of the trails plan started
immediately.

The Master Plan is infended to assist the SCRD in developing a district-wide approach to
achieving an integrated community parks plan, based on the following vision:
Together with the community and our partners, the Sunshine Coast Regional District will work
towards the delivery of a coordinated rural park and open space system which:
* Supports the identity, spirit, biodiversity and vitality of the region; and,
* Supports the growth of individuals by providing healthy opportunities for residents
of, and visitors to, the Sunshine Coast.

Our Parks

No matter what you like to do in the way of outdoor activities, the SCRD has a park or a trail
to suit your needs. There are waterfront parks with ocean beach access, parks on lakes, parks
with campgrounds, parks with halls for rent, parks with hiking trails and even a mountain
biking park called Sprockids. Dakota Ridge is the primary winter recreation area on the
Coast; it offers cross-country ski trails, snowshoeing trails and a warming hut. A toboggan run
is scheduled for construction in 2008.

Sprockids is a Ministry of Forests Park that is managed by the SCRD. The Park provides over
14-km of trails with jumps, downhill runs, teeter-bars and ramps; most trails loop back to the

2007 Sunshine Coast Regional District Annual Report

21



Planning and
Development

1996
* Final report reveals soaring costs of
ferry-to-ferry bike path-$7.2 million

1997
* Regional Growth rate at 20%
- Population Stats (Apr. 97)

2002
* Scoping Phase Regional Growth
Strategy Implemented

* Gibsons applies to Ministry to
restructure with areas £ & F

2006
* Restructuring plan defeated in
referendum

* Garden Bay water system fo merge
with SCRD

Gibsons Bypass

1986
* Voters want a date for construction
start on Gibsons Bypass

1990
* Work underway on Gibsons Bypass

1994
* Bypass back to drawing board for
review

1995
* Bypass opens

park centre so riders can try several different runs.

Our Sports Fields

There are currently four sports fields in SCRD parks, one in Area B — Connor Park, one in

Area D — Cliff Gilker Park, one in Area E — Maryanne West Park, and one in Area F — Shirley
Macey Park. Used extensively by soccer and baseball teams, these parks are a focal point of
activity in their communities. Construction of a sports field in Area A — Egmont/Pender Harbour
began this year. With a field in each electoral area, the SCRD is able to support communities
and schools with their organized team sports.

School Facilities - Joint Use

A joint use agreement was signed between the SCRD and School District 46 in 1977, it was
updated in 1999. Under the agreement, a committee of members from both organizations
looks at opportunities for shared projects that will benefit the entire community. Identified
projects are then brought to both Boards for approval, and if approved, for funding assistance.
A five year joint-use plan is in development.

The SCRD and School District 46 are currently working on a school-community connections
program to look at the feasibility of improving the kitchen at Elphinstone Secondary and
implementing a community gardens project.

Cemeteries

Seaview Cemetery in Roberts Creek was operated by a volunteer Board of Trustees,

until 1967 when the SCRD was formed and ownership was transferred to the Regional
District. Unfortunately, burial records were not carefully kept prior to the SCRD taking over
management of the cemetery.

Kleindale Cemetery was never a legally sanctioned cemetery and the provincial government
closed it to further burials in November 1982. The SCRD assumed responsibility for upkeep at
the cemetery.

Planning and Development Division Highlights
Division Head: Judy Skogstad, Manager

With responsibility for rural and regional planning services, as well as property and information
mapping, the Division plays a significant role as the public face of the SCRD. Some of our key
activities in 2007 included:
* Largely completing the Official Community Plan (OCP) review for Electoral
Area E - Elphinstone
* Updating information for the OCP reviews of Area F - West Howe Sound and
Area D - Roberts Creeks
* Introducing the Green Shores principles to help protect the shoreline in the Roberts
Creek area and conducting ‘Living by the Water” workshops
* Working with consultants on Phase Two of the Integrated Storm Water Management
Plans for West Howe Sound, Elphinstone and East Roberts Creek
* Developing a conceptual plan for “downtown Roberts Creek” to rationalize parking,
and provide opportunities for pedestrian and bike paths and transit
* Mapping the Sunshine Coast watersheds as part of a long range watershed
management strategy
e Starting research for Phase One of the Regional Growth Strategy
* Implementing the Online Property Information System (OPIS) and the Property
Information and Mapping System (PIMS)
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Planning and Development Division Services

The Planning and Development Division prepares plans and policies to guide sustainable
development. The Division works with communities to balance economic, social and
environmental considerations; responsibilities include planning for the electoral areas as well
as for the Regional District as a whole.

The principal functions of the SCRD Planning and Development Division are to:

* Prepare land use plans, policies and regulations for consideration by the SCRD Board

* Facilitate public participation in land use planning and development processes

* Serve the community by responding to a wide range of inquiries and applications
related to the use and development of land

* Administer SCRD land use bylaws and policies

* Provide information to the SCRD Board on planning, development and resource
matters

Rural (Electoral Area) Planning

Official Community Plans and zoning bylaws are the primary policy and regulatory
mechanisms used for rural planning. Each electoral area has an Advisory Planning
Commission — a Board appointed body to provide advice on planning related matters referred
to them, such as the preparation and adoption of an Official Community Plan, rural land use
(zoning) bylaws, or a proposed bylaw or permit to enable development.

Over the course of a year the department will manage applications in the following areas:
* Zoning bylaw amendments * OCP bylaw amendments
* Variance permits * Board of Variance Orders
* Subdivision applications * Agricultural Land Reserve Applications
* Development permits * Building permits (Zoning)

In 2007 the Division introduced, through a bylaw review process, a potential Green Shores
Strategy for Roberts Creek. The principles behind green shores are that it is best to use natural
methods to protect foreshores from erosion, and that construction of seawalls, and homes or
outbuildings within 15 metres of the shoreline can be damaging to the foreshore.

The concepts of green shores were not well understood by the community, and significant
community concerns were expressed. A Green Shores Steering Committee was established in
response to these concerns. They will meet throughout 2008 and make recommendations on
whether, and how, to implement green shores principles in Roberts Creek.

An Ocean Beach Esplanade Stewardship Committee was established in Area E - Elphinsone.

Regional Planning

The SCRD is comprised of three municipal governments and five electoral areas. Planning for
the Regional District as a whole requires detailed research and analyses of how the type, extent
and location of growth will-affect residents and the quality of life on the Coast.

Regional planning responsibilities include reviewing applications for resource extraction,
aquaculture operations, commercial recreation areas, forest stewardship plans and
independent power projects.

Planning and
Development

1972
* Boundaries of Electoral Area D & E
redefined

1974
* Agricultural Land Reserves
infroduced

1976
* Gibsons boundary area extensions
implemented

1978
* Area B residents meet to form an
official seftlement plan

1979
* 251 housing starts in the Regional
District

1980
* Talk of amalgamation of Area C
with Sechelt

1981

* Ministry of Municipal Affairs
suggests SCRD, Gibsons and
Sechelt should become one
municipality

* Political Representatives meet fo
consider recommendations of
Provincial Government to form one
large municipality

* House numbering introduced
— SCRD and Sechelt agree to sefting
up a grid for house numbering

1982

* 916 Building permits issued

* News headline: “Coast property
assessments sky high — Egmont fo
Port Mellon rise anywhere form
40 - 148%"

* Gibsons Village becomes the
Town of Gibsons

1983
* News headline “Fireworks at Board
over numbering system

1985

* Sechelt and Areas C & B to
amalgamate

* SCRD starts house numbering
system

1986

* Voters Approve Restructuring
— Disband Village of Sechelt form
District of Sechelt
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1990

* Dissolve area C — now have
Areas A B, D, E, F

* SCRD mapping division accredited
by Surveyor Generals office (one of
the most sophisticated electronic
mapping systems of any local
government in the province)

¢ 2020- A coast-wide planning project
seeks community opinion on future
development on the Coast.

1991
* Boundary extension in Gibsons

1992
* Rename areas to
A - Egmont/Pender Harbour
B - Halfmoon Bay
D - Roberts Creek
E - Elphinstone
F - West Howe Sound

1994

* 200 people pack Rockwood Centre
for Land Use Resource Plan forum
meeting on Tetrahedron Plateau

* Coordinator needed for one
government talks

* Sustainable communities debated

Regional planning requires inter-jurisdictional cooperation with other local governments as
well as provincial and federal agencies with responsibilities in the area. The SCRD received
funding to initiate Phase One of the Regional Growth Strategy; this phase is called a scoping
study. It will update all relevant data and trends related to regional growth issues and
determine the interest for establishing a full scale Regional Growth Strategy.

A Regional Growth Strategy requires the involvement of the other local government
jurisdictions, as well as each Electoral Area, and key stakeholders such as provincial agencies
that provide services to the Sunshine Coast.

The Division also developed a draft Terms of Reference document to identify the strategies
needed to begin a Regional Intermodal Transportation study. Proceeding with this project
requires funding from senior government.

The Division was also very active in supporting the Board during the Local Government
watershed review hearing process.

Property Information and Mapping Services
Head: Trevor Fawcett — GIS Administrator

Mapping services are a key support for many of the Community Services, Infrastructure
Services, and Administrative and Legislative Service functions in the SCRD.

Mapping also provides the public with access to information on all properties on the Sunshine
Coast, which includes legal descriptions, ownership and development information.

Last year two new web-mapping sites were launched; the Online Property Information

System (OPIS), which allows anyone to go to the mapping section on the SCRD web site

and enter their address to get a bird’s-eye view of a map that identifies their property and
provides information on the surrounding eco-system and topography, as well as zoning, legal
descriptions and various reports.

The expanded Property Information and Mapping System (PIMS), which is provided on a
subscription basis of $300 a year, offers more detailed legal, land, and mapping services, as
well as analytical tools.

Other key activities in 2007 included:
* Receiving $14,500 from the Integrated Cadastral Initiative Society to complete
GPS surveys in order to upgrade the accuracy of the legal parcel layer

* Providing mapping and spatial data for the:
o Electoral Area A Water Master Plan
o South Coast Integrated Storm Water Management Plan
© Electoral Area D Technical Background Report
© Electoral Area F Technical Background Report
° Electoral Area E Official Community Plan

* Entering 335 km. of watermain infrastructure into a consolidated data base
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Building Services
Head: Allen Whittleton, Acting Chief Building Inspector

The Building Department regulates construction, in the interest of safety, for the general
public. Building department staff issue permits and monitor new construction for substantial
conformance to the minimum health and safety regulations contained in the B.C. Building

Code.

The department provides inspection services for all of the Electoral Areas, including the islands
controlled by the Islands Trust, and parts of the Sechelt Indian Government District.

For the first time since 1999, there has been a reduction in construction activity.

2007 2006

156 permits for single family houses 229 permits for single family houses
436 permits in total 479 permits in total

$62.9 million — total project values $74.9 million — total project values
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Protective Services
Services in this area include Bylaw Enforcement, Animal Control, Emergency Program services
and the volunteer fire departments.

Bylaw Services

The bylaws that currently govern the Sunshine Coast Regional District cover a wide variety of
topics regarding the use of properties. The Bylaw Compliance Officer ensures compliance with
bylaws. The most commonly enforced bylaws are:

* Zoning Bylaw No. 310, which establishes the zoning and subdivision districts for the
Electoral Areas B - Halfmoon Bay, D - Roberts Creek, E-Elphinstone and
F- West Howe Sound. The bylaw regulates the use of land, buildings and
structures within these zones.
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* Zoning Bylaw No. 337, which establishes the zoning and subdivision districts
for Electoral Area A - Egmont/Pender Harbour. The bylaw regulates the use of
land, buildings and structures within Area A.

* Noise Suppression Bylaw 294, which establishes guidelines for the levels and types
of noise permitted in the electoral areas of the Regional District.

Animal Control Services
The Dog Control Officer’s role is to educate the public and ensure compliance with
the appropriate SCRD bylaws.

The Dog Control Officer responds to complaints from the public regarding dogs that are
running free and/or aggressive. Dog control services are provided to Area B - Halfmoon Bay,
Area D- Roberts Creek, Area E - Elphinstone, and Area F- West Howe Sound and the Sechelt
Indian Government District.

The bylaws governing these duties are:

* Dog Regulation and Impounding Bylaw No. 376, which regulates the keeping of
dogs within the Sunshine Coast Regional District, and collecting licensing fees from
any person who owns, possesses or harbours a dog.

* Kennel Regulation Bylaw No. 554, which allows the Board to regulate or prohibit
kennels or other places for the keeping, training, care, breeding, treatment,
hospitalization or boarding of dogs.

Emergency Program
Head: Bill Elsner, Emergency Program Coordinator

The Sunshine Coast Emergency Program provides a comprehensive emergency management
program for the entire Sunshine Coast; its role is to prepare for, respond to, and recover from
emergencies and disasters.

Emergency management addresses six principal strategies: risk assessment, risk mitigation,
response planning, recovery planning, preparedness, and program evaluation. The Sunshine
Coast is susceptible to many types of disasters and emergencies. The primary concerns are
wildfire, dangerous goods, and earthquakes. These events can be of enough significance to
prompt the formal declaration of a local state of emergency.

An Emergency Program Planning Committee, chaired by the Emergency Program Coordinator,
is composed of representatives of agencies having direct responsibilities during a major
emergency. These agencies include, but are not limited to, RCMP, Fire Departments, BC
Ambulance, BC Forest Service, Ministry of Transportation, Vancouver Coastal Health, BC
Ferries and BC Hydro. A number of volunteer groups such as Emergency Social Services,
Emergency Radio Communications, Search and Rescue and Coast Guard Auxiliaries also play
a major role in our Emergency Program.

Highlights for 2007 include:
* Completion of the Wildfire Risk Assessment Project for selected SCRD parks
* Procurement and deploying upgraded Casualty Collection Units for Roberts Creek
and Pender Harbour; these emergency medical supplies are part of the National
Emergency Supplies Stockpile (NESS)
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* Receiving the 200 Bed Emergency Hospital and placing it into containers behind
Elphinstone Secondary School

* Delivery of the Mobile Command Unit vehicle, installing the communications
equipment and orienting emergency program staff to the unit

* Delivery and commissioning of the stand-by generator for the SCRD head office on
Field Road. If needed an emergency operations centre will be established in the
Board room at the Field Road office

* Conducting an introduction to Emergency Management and Emergency Operations

Centre (EOC) training for SCRD staff

* Updating the Industry Canada Priority Access Dialing Database (PAD)

* Facilitating formation of an Emergency Preparedness Committee in Pender Harbour

* Purchasing Emergency Preparedness Ready Kits, and training SCRD staff on use of
their kits

* Facilitating production of DVD for Coast Cable that highlights the Emergency
Program

* Responding to a variety of weather related events such as; storm surges at Davis
Bay, windstorms, mudslides in Gibsons, and landslides in Halfmoon Bay and
Pender Harbour

* Making presentation on Emergency Preparedness to community associations in
Roberts Creek, Davis Bay, Secret Cove and Sechelt Heights

* Making presentations to groups such as the Pender Women’s Connection,
Harmony Hall Senior’s Centre, and others.

* Coordinating Volunteer activities by Coast Guard Auxiliary, Search and Rescue,
Emergency Social Services and Emergency Communications. These volunteers
provide thousands of hours of service in support of emergency programs

9-1-1 Emergency Service
The SCRD funds emergency telephone 9-1-1 service for police, fire and ambulance through
the 9-1-1 E-Comm centre in Vancouver:
* The 9-1-1 system automatically identifies the number and associated address of
where the telephone is located
* Calls to 9-1-1 from cellular phones do not provide location information
* Callsto 9-1-1 from a pay phone do not require any money
* In the event of a 9-1-1 system failure, E-Comm has an emergency system, which
automatically activates if 9-1-1 lines are down for 15 minutes

Detailed Emergency Services information is available at www.scrd.ca

Fire Services
The Sunshine Coast Regional District is responsible for providing fire protection services to
Gibsons and Area, Halfmoon Bay, Roberts Creek and Egmont. The Egmont department halll
was under construction in 2007, it is expected to be operational in 2008. There is a full-time
fire chief serving Gibsons and area, as well as three staff and approximately 39 volunteers.
The other departments have volunteer Fire Chiefs and volunteer members. Details on the fire
departments are available on their web sites.
Roberts Creek www.robertscreekfire.ca Gibsons & Area www.gibsonsfire.ca
Halfmoon Bay www.hmbfire.org Egmont (under development)

Community and Economic Development Services

The primary focus in this area is:

* Supporting community groups through administration of federal and provincial grants
¢ Selling the subdivided industrial site lots at Hillside Industrial Park
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Infrastructure Services

Infrastructure Services Department: Highlights
Department Head: Steve Lee (January - April) / Bryan Shoji, General Manager

Our primary focus over the past year was in two areas - water and sustainability. Although
there was significant activity in our transportation, facilities and ports services division, the two
biggest accomplishments were the completion of the Area A - Egmont/Pender Harbour Master
Plan for water, and the introduction of a Stewardship, Conservation and Sustainable Services
Division (Sustainability Services).

The Department, in partnership with Financial Services, also began work on the inventory
system for infrastructure and facilities. The planned computerized inventory data bank will
allow the SCRD to identify the age and condition of all of its facilities and infrastructure, and
to implement a maintenance, replacement and long-range planning schedule. The ability to
identify maintenance and replacement needs and to plan for these activities years in advance
supports the development of sustainable infrastructure strategies. Purchase of the system and
staff training is scheduled for 2008.

Infrastructure Services Department: Overview of Services
The Infrastructure Services Department includes: the Sustainability Services Division,
Engineering Services Division, and the Transportation, Ports and Facilities Services Division.

Services provided by the department include:
* Water service, delivery and conservation programs
* Wastewater collection and treatment services
* Solid waste collection and disposal services
* Waste reduction programs, including recycling
* Developing and implementing solid waste and waste water management plans
* Transit and handyDART services
* Ports services

Engineering Services Division
Division Head: Manager (vacant)

Key activities in the water and wastewater management services area included:

* Bringing the South Pender Water System into the SCRD water system

* Receiving $2.8 M in grants for the Pender Harbour Water system as a result of
completing the Master Plan

* Working with various consultants to report on the impacts of logging and other
activities in the watersheds, as well as testing and reporting on water quality at
Chapman Lake

* Working with the Drinking Water Officer to address deficiencies in the water supply
system

* Implementing studies to support the Local Board of Health review of threats to the
quality of water in the Chapman Creek watershed.

Water

1969
* SCRD assumes function of water
supply and distribution

1984

* Board gets grant of $175,000 for
improvements fo water system

* SCRD water charges restructured to
reflect cost of operations and
maintenance- all subscribers will
pay some form of increase

1994
* $40,000 monitoring system installed
at Chapman Creek fo check water

turbidity and acidity levels

2004
* Chapman Creek water treatment
plant opens

2007 Sunshine Coast Regional District Annual Report

29



Recycling

1985

* News headline “Recycling off o a
slow start” — it alternates weeks with
garbage pickup

1986

* Garbage pickup back to a weekly
basis (was alternated with recycling)

* Recycling committee established to
review options

1994

* SCRAPS organization has been
recycling on the coast since 1988

* Rare oil filter crusher purchased by
Sunshine Coast Disposal - recycles
oil, plastic and rubber ring through
separating process

* SCRD improves scrap metal
recycling program

* Recycling depots show increased
use

* GRIPs (Pender Harbour Recycling)
requests financial help from SCRD

1997

* Pender Harbour Recycling Program
a success

* SCRAPS — increased recycling costs
scrutinized by regional directors

2003
* SCRD takes on recycling depot
system after SCRAPS closes

2005
* SCRD Purchases recycling
equipment and fransport frucks.

* Completing a number of water infrastructure service and supply projects such as:
° replacing concrete asbestos watermains in the Sechelt area

installing new water meters and water hydrants

upgrading the water monitoring and lake control systems at Chapman Lake

installing new water storage tanks for the Eastbourne Water system

extending backup power to pump stations and reservoirs to ensure a

continuous flow of data during unexpected interruptions of services

© improving backup communications and mobile systems so that staff can
manage water delivery systems should major events disrupt services

°© implementation of the SCADA system (Supervisory Control And Data
Acquisition). The SCADA system monitors, controls and alarms water and
wastewater treatment facilities, such as intake and/or effluent structures,
pumping stations, chlorination stations and control valve stations. The
SCRD is implementing SCADA in its water delivery system.

Stewardship, Conservation and Sustainable Services
Division Head: Dion Whyte, Manager

In keeping with the Board’s commitment to building a sustainable community, a Stewardship,
Conservation and Sustainable Services Division (Sustainable Services) was established.

The Division is responsible for corporate-wide strategies to support the SCRD’s Sustainable
Community Policy which is intended to reduce our carbon footprint and to address issues of
global warming.

This Division also manages solid waste services, including; operation and maintenance of the
Sechelt Landfill and Pender Harbour Landfill sites, monitoring of two closed landfill sites in
Gibsons and Halfmoon Bay, garbage collection services within areas that are designated to
receive collection services, operation of two recycling depots located in Gibsons and Sechelt,
and waste reduction planning and initiatives.

Key activities during 2007 included:

* The Board of Directors signing the B.C. Climate Action Charter and making a commitment to
make SCRD operations carbon neutral by 2012

The Board passing a resolution to join the Federal Partners for Climate Protection program
Developing a proposal, and receiving funding, for a $1.1 million project at the Sechelt
Landfill that involves capturing methane gas and converting it to electrical power
Implementing a Recycling Review process to try and determine the best options for recycling
on the Coast. The role of recycling in a sustainable community is one of the key focus areas
identified in the SCRD’s Solid Waste Management Plan

Continuing with the Bathroom Fixture Replacement Program and Toilet Rebate Program as
part of a water reduction and conservation strategy. In 2007 the SCRD provided
replacements for more than 2000 toilets, nearly 800 showerheads and 1400 faucet
aerators.

Installing more residential water meters as part of the water use reduction and conservation
strategy

Donating refundable cans and bottles from our recycling depots to Habitat for Humanity

to support affordable community housing — a key element in sustainable community
development. (Habitat has won the Alcan Award for recycling the most used aluminum
beverage cans per capita, in Canada.)

In the year, ahead the Sustainable Services Division will coordinate and facilitate the
Sustainable Community Policy Project to “green up” corporate operations. Activities will
include developing and coordinating the efforts of an interdepartmental staff working group

Providing 40 years of service
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for the purpose of creating a prioritized list of SCRD activities, operating guidelines and Solid Waste
administrative procedures that support the Sustainable Community Policy. 1978

* Weekly garbage collection on
In 2008, the Division will also begin developing an inventory and forecast of the SCRD's referendum ballot
greenhouse gas emissions as part of the Board’s commitment to take action on Climate 1996

Change. Additional activities associated with this project include setting emissions reduction « Solid Waste Management Plan

targets and developing a local action plan for achieving reduction targets. Implementation adopted
of the local action plan, monitoring progress, and reporting results will be the focus in future 2006
years. * Revised Solid Waste Management

Plan adopted

Solid Waste
Key activities in the solid waste management area include:
* Ongoing contracting for residential garbage collection in Area B - Halfmoon Bay,

Area D - Roberts Creek, Area E - Elphinstone and Area F - West Howe Sound
* Introduction of a coupon program for spring cleanup; rather than collecting clean-up refuse
from the roadside during a one-or-two-week period in the spring, homeowners are issued
coupons allowing them to take one free load to the landfill. The coupon is good for one
year. The switch to the coupon program reduces unsightly garbage on the roadside, and
indirectly encourages residents to reduce, reuse or recycle.
Ongoing operation of two landfill sites (Sechelt & Pender Harbour) with the intent of
environmental protection, maximum diversion, and progressive improvement of operations
* The provision of share sheds to encourage reuse of items in good repair; as well as yard
waste recycling, wood salvage, on-site reuse of a variety of waste materials (roofing, glass,
ceramics) and a recycling program for gypsum, metal, tires and cardboard. As a
result 7,500 tonnes were diverted from the Sechelt and Pender Harbour landfills in 2007.
A total of 14,159 tonnes of waste was managed through the landfills last year, up from
13,957 tonnes in 2007.
Recycling services are provided by the SCRD through two depots, one in Gibsons and one
in Sechelt; the SCRD also funds GRIPS a non-profit recycling provider in Egmont/Pender
Harbour. GRIPS also operates a paint care depot.
* The SCRD contributes to the Gibsons Green Waste Facility, which then provides a yard
waste service for residents of Gibsons, Roberts Creek, Elphinstone, and West Howe Sound.
Sechelt landfill has product care depots for safely disposing of paint and paint cans,
gasoline, pesticide and flammable containers
Electronic waste is accepted at the landfills for a fee; it is then readied for pickup by Encorp
Pacific, one of the two provincially funded agencies that manage recycling and disposal of
electronics

SCRD Waste Diversion (2006-2007)

Percent Reduction in Per Capita Waste Landfilled Over 1990 Baseline
Recycling and Landfill Programs Combined
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Transit

1982
* Transit Function assumed by SCRD

1994
* Area transit stats lead the province
and continue to climb

1995
* News headline “Hallelujah: Sunday
Bus Service “

1997
* Coast Transit praised for cost
efficiency (June 97)

* Bus service extensions
Ports

1997

* Notice of public meeting re:
Transport Canada Divesting Ports

* Most stakeholders support port
transfer to SCRD

Transportation and Facilities
Division Head: Brian Sagman, Manager

The Division is responsible for the operation of the transit system, maintaining the fleet of
transit busses and SCRD vehicles, maintenance of SCRD buildings and management of nine
ports.

Highlights of the Year

* Ridership on the busses was up by nearly 9% from 2006

* Another bus was added to the fleet, the SCRD now operates five full-sized transit busses and
four mini-busses.

* Additional runs on the Langdale — Sechelt route were added during the summer months

* The Division applied for, and received, a grant of $128,500 to build bus shelters and
pull-offs

* Maintaining the approximately 80 trucks, vans and passenger vehicles that are part of the
fleet used for SCRD operations

* Preliminary identification of facilities, their age, maintenance needs and replacement
schedules was initiated as part of the computerized facilities and infrastructure inventory
program that will begin in 2008

The services provided by the department include:
* Operating the transit system from Langdale to Halfmoon Bay under a funding agreement
with BC Transit
* Maintaining the fleet of transit buses and SCRD vehicles as well as the fuel supply system
* Providing building maintenance services to:
- the head office on Field Rd.
- the works yard buildings (parks hut, public works building, transit/fleet maintenance
building, and emergency services trailer)
- Chaster House, Frank West Hall, Coopers Green Hall, Eric Cardinal Hall,
Cliff Gilker Park, and Katherine Lake Park
- Seaview Cemetery
- Sechelt and Pender Harbour Landfill buildings
- Various pump houses and other SCRD structures

Ports Services

* Operating and maintaining nine docks

* Improvements in ports infrastructure including; installing a new ramp at Gambier Island
Harbour, hand rails at West Bay dock, and new ladders at several docks.

Providing 40 years of service
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Financial Section

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Sunshine Coast Regional District provide
important information about the overall financial condition of the Regional District. The
purpose of the consolidated statements is to present the financial results for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007, including the effects of transactions undertaken while conducting
the operations of the Regional District. This report provides important information to the
readers and strives to present a clear insight to the overall financial condition of the Regional
District.

These statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted
accounting principles and public sector accounting standards as outlined under “Significant
Accounting Policies” on pages 41 to 43. These include estimates based on management’s
professional judgement.

The preparation and presentation of the financial statements and related information in the
annual report is the responsibility of the management of the Regional District. Staff provides
support to the external auditors during the year-end audit by preparing the working papers and
ensuring unrestricted access to all related financial information.

The audit firm of BDO Dunwoody LLP, as appointed by the Board, is responsible for reporting
the audit results. The auditor’s plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on

a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

To assist in meeting its responsibility, management maintains a system of accounting, budget
and other internal controls. These controls provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
appropriately authorized and accurately recorded, that assets are properly accounted for and
safeguarded, and that the integrity of financial records is maintained.

In addition, the Regional District undertakes a comprehensive budget process each year

to develop the five-year operating and capital plans. This process includes three rounds of
budget discussion in open Board meetings as well as an opportunity for public input. As per
legislative requirements, the budget is adopted by March 31st each year. Management is
responsible for carrying out-the ongoing operations of the Regional District within the limits set
by the Budget Bylaw.

Respectfully,

"-," Y
el T .s[::
Jq_qJn Merrick, CGA

Treasurer

Dated: June 2008
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Canadian
Award for
Financial
Reporting

Sunshine Coast Regional District
British Colwmbia

Far its A&nnual
Financial Report
for the Year Ended

December 31, 200K

The Government Finance Officers Association of
the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Canadian Award for Financial Reporting

to the Sunshine Coast Regional District for its
annual financial report for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006. The Canadian Award for
Financial Reporting program was established to
encourage municipal governments throughout
Canada to publish high quality financial reports
and to provide peer recognition and technical
guidance for officials preparing these reports.

In order to be awarded a Canadian Award

for Financial Reporting, a government unit
must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized annual financial report, whose
contents conform to program standards.

Such reports should go beyond the minimum
requirements of generally accepted accounting
principles and demonstrate an effort to clearly
communicate the municipal government’s
financial picture, enhance an understanding of
financial reporting by municipal governments,
and address user needs.

A Canadian Award for Financial Reporting is
valid for a period of one year only. We believe
our current report continues to conform to

the Canadian Award for Financial Reporting
program requirements, and we are submitting it

to GFOA.

Financial Section

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Auditors’ Report on Consolidated Statements
Statement of Financial Position

Statement of Investment in Non-financial Assets
Statement of Financial Activities

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Changes in Fund Balances

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Supplementary Financial Statements:

Auditors’ Report on Supplementary Statements
Schedule 1 Statement of Operating Surplus
Schedule 2 General Revenue Fund

Statements of Revenue, Expenditures and Transfers:
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Auditors’ Report

To the Chairperson and Directars of the
Sunshine Coast Regional District

We have audiled the Stalement of Financial Pogition of the Sunshine Coast Regional District as at
December 31, 2007 and the Stalements of Invesiment in Mon-Financial Assets, Financial Activities, Cash
Flows and Changes in Fund Balancas for the year then ended These financial statements are the
responsibibly of the Dislnicts management. Our responsibility is 10 express an opinion on these finandal
slatements based on our audii

We conducted ocur audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepled auditing standards. Those
slandards reguire that we plan and perform an audit Lo oblain reasonable assurance whelher Lhe linanaal
slatements are free of matenal misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis. evidence
supporting the amownts and disclosures im the financial statements. An audit also incledes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estmates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial slatermeanl presaniation

In our opinign, these financial statemenis present faidy, in all material respecis, the financial position of
the Sunshing Coast Regional District as at December 31, 2007 and the results of its cperations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian gemerally accepted accounting
prnciphes.

?ﬁ_«. Dounnsdy 68

Chartensd Accountants

Vancouver, British Columbia
March 11, 2008
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2005
Financial Assets
Cash and eguivalents 5 1727144 = 1d4 GO
Portlalio investments (MNata 2) 11,804,844 24,179,693
Accounts receivable (Nole 3) 1,755,337 2,015,225
Loans receivabla {Mote 4) 22 257 61,842
Labil recovarabde from mamDar mumncgalitieg 9429 317 10015175
24,735,919 36,416,539
Liabilitics
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Nate 5) 4,239,035 3417080
Defarred revenus
Development cost charges (Mote B 1,200,683 1,053 350
Fulure parks acquisilion {Mote 7 256,419 204,997
Ciher 1,371,146 1435474
Provision for landlill future closure and post closure costs [(Mole 8] 486,456 864,403
Leng term debl (Mote 20 37,851,108 J7 533,353
45,904,848 44 508 S5
Het Financial Assels [Met Debt) {21,165.929) (8,082 223]
MHan-fimancial Assets
Imvenlory TeY,928 B11 684
Tangible capilal assets [Mote 10) B& 420, 391 FOAT0 274
B9.682.3149 71,281,958
Financial Fosition & 68,516,390 I 63,189,735
Financial Pesition
Furd Balances
Current fund 5 LS4 MTF 5 1,74 /YT
Capital fund 3325 6ES 14,770, 596
Reasere fund 3,243,041 2913,682
Financial Equity 7,255,843 19,425,955
Investment in Non-financial Assets 61,260,547 43,763,780
% 68516390 5 632789735
\I". {-h'r"l,\\_l’- Y h.l."\- ':'_L1' gA -:'i - —
{____'.I. -~ e .--___-"h_l'__,..{ - 2

Joan Mearrick, CGA

Treasure Chair

=d Sleaves

The accompanying section "Noles 1o Financial Statements” forms an integral part of these financal

stalemeants.
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Statement of Investment in Non-financial Assets
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
nvestment in non-financial assels, beginning of year £ 43,763,780 5 35 360,530
Ade:

Capital additions 18.451,482 0,490,862
Change ininventony and othor 225013 (49, 756) A25.820
Debl principal repayments 1.651.4649 2,220,837
20,053,205 12,037,319

Deduct
Deabat issued ang other abligations o finance canital acditions 2.555,063 1,629,063
Cast of assets sold ar wiitlan ofl 1,373 3,000
2,906,435 3,634,069
rmveslment in ran-inancial assels, and ol year S B61.260,547 = 43.763.730

The accompamying sechon "Metes o Censelidated Financial Statements” forms an integral part of
these fimancial slatements.
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Statement of Financial Activities
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Budgetl Actual Aclua
2007 2007 2006

Revenue
Grants in ligu of 1axes 5 21,000 50,534 25,335
Tax requisilion 11,140,426 11,140,436 10,465,613
Franlage and parcel laxes 3,699 512 3,726, 004 4775300
Conditional grants and fransiers 1,244 B2hR 238 330 2183 063
Uncondifionzl grants and transfors 131,750 150,665 133,085
User fess ardd service charges 7370833 7,272 500 B.084,963
Pember municipaily debl repaymenis 1,103,653 1,103,692 1,037,104
nvesiment income 193,180 287,215 D4 A08
Froceeds from sake of assets 232,270 1,374 184,624
Developer contributions 30,000 466,574 676,278
Other revenue 1,116,951 579,274 933,905

27,134, 70 26,616,613 26,131,249
Expenditures
Geaneral governmeant 2,117,259 2,171,192 2336 548
Froleclve samvices 2,464,906 2,021,291 2271 861
Transportalion sendices 2,514,858 2,333,990 A.536912
Environmental servicas 3,074,338 2,950,286 2562, 596
Fublic healih seraces 205,660 187,613 173,366
Flannmg and devalopment seraces 1,921,553 1,666, 17E 1,561,233
Recreation and cultural services 26,082 374 21,563,104 10,304, 752
Water ulilitas 7,350,480 5408518 5014571
Sewer ulilties 338,878 248,530 2B2,169
Hillsids Developmanl Project 224,271 35,924 51,297
Debt charges, member municipaliies 1,103,693 1,103,692 1.037100

47 408,314 389,690,319 20,532,403
Excess (Deliciency) ol Revenue over Expenditures  (20,273.554)  (13,073,700) [3,408,154)
Debi principal repaymenis [1,590,327) {1,651,469) [2.220,837)
Procaeds from long ferm debl 3,055,016 25685063 3625 089
Increase (decrease) in linancial egquity for year (18,808 860 (12,170,112 (1,992 4922)
Financial eguity, baginning of year 19,425,955 19,425,955 21,425 877

Fimancial eguity, end of year 5

617,020 & 7,255,843

19,425,955

The accompanying sechion "Noes 1o Fnancial Statemeanis™ larms an integral par of (hesas linancal

stalemenis
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 20015
Operating aclivities:
Excass revanus over axpenchluras S013.073,706) 5 2402154
Changa in non-gash oporating items
Decraase (incraase) in accounts raceivable 259 888 (508,143)
Docroase (increaso] i loans roceivanle 39,585 35,9846
Decrease (increase] in debt recoveranle from future issues - -
InGreass [decraasa) in accounts payable 821,855 SaE D94
Increase (decrease) in lemporaty borrowing - -
Increass (decrease) in delerred revenue 134,422 1,062,234
Imcrease (decrease) in provision for lancldl future closure
and post-closure costs 122,053 113,423
(11.695503) [1.756,060]
Investing Activities:
Decrease (moraasa)l in investmenis 12,374,849 [254,2831
Financing Activities:
Dabl procesds 2. 555 063 4,629,064
Repaymant of long term dabs 11,651, 469) [2,220,8371
303,594 1,408,232
Tatal ingrease (decrease) in cash 1.562,540 (02,1111
Cash and eguivalents, beginning of year 143,604 1,046,715
Cash and equivalenis, end of year 5 1,727144 3% 144 6004

The accompanying secbon "MNotes o Conselidated Financial Statemants” forms an integral part of

these fimancial siztemants.
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Statement of Changes in Fund Ealances
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007

2006

Current Fund Balance
Rovenue

5 25.864 656

£ 25811.098

Less: Expandiures A 7E 420 20048 741
Excess revenus aver expenditures 4,690,236 5, TE2 357
Debt repayments (1.651,469) (2,220.837]
Transfers:

Transier b capital fund 15.588,904) (3,279.825]

Transler lo reserve fund (BOT,423) (267 800)
norease (decrease) in current fund balance (1,157 560) 6, 105)
Currant fund balancs, Beginmng ol yoar 1,741,677 1,747 7E2
Current Tund balance, end al yoar 5 5B477 & 1,721877
Capital Fund Balance
Revenue $ 626,150 3194524
Less: Expandiures 18,515,895 G490 6552
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expendifures {17,889 749 (9,206.038)
Transler:

Transler from current fund 3.588,904 3,279,825

Transler Irom resarve Turd 303,871 Vi5.6443
Debt issued 2,555,063 3,629 0c9
norease (decrease) in capital fund halance {11.441,911) (2,310,501)
Capital lund balance, baginaing of year 14,770,596 17,081,097
Capilal lund balance, end of year 3 3328 6B3 = 14,770,556

Maota: The sunplu luands rosults |

R
1 Cpdl

rawm issuarca of kg lerm debl far the approved consirectan af

Focroalion laodbas, Ths serpius wil reducs as 1ha expondituras ang made “or thosa lacilbas

Reserve Fund Ealance

tha Community

nierasi revenue 5 125807 5 128 K27V
Transfer
Transier lo capital fund (303,871 [76.643]
Transtar from current fund GOT,A23 267800
NCraass (Qosrgase) in resensg fund balancae 429 1359 A hdd
Reserve fund balanca, beginning ol year 2.913 682 2,596 954
Reserve fund balance. end of year 5 3343061 % 29154882

The accompanying seclion "Noes 1o Fnancial Statemeanis™ larms an integral par of (hess linancial

stalemenis
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Motes to Financial Statements
Far the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

1. Signiticant Accounting Policies;

The preparation of the Financial Statements is the resgonsibility of the managemeant of the
Sunshing Coast Regional Distrcl. The accounting polcies used within these slatements
conform io generally accepted accounting principhes lor lacal governments in British Columbsa,
Thay have been prepared in accordance with currenl recommendations issued by the Public
Sector Arcounting Board af the Canadian Insfitute of Chaered Accauntants

[ Reporting enbity and consolidatom;

The Fmancial Slatarments combina the activities of the various funds ol the repoarting anlily:
the Sunshine Coast Regiognal District. Interfund fransactions &nd fund balances have been
eliminated for reporting purposes. There are no other organisations under the control of the
Hegonal Destine! Board thal meet the cntena lor mclusan and consolidabaon in hese
slatemeants.

o) Fund accaunting:

The resources and oparations af the Begional Distnct bave been segragated for accounting
and financial reporting purposes inle the folowing funds, which are presented as
supplementary schedules

Currgnt lund Hapods the phnciple  cperating acinalies of  [ha Gonesal, Wanor
Lizility and Sewear LHilily revenus lunds.

Capital fund; Repons the acquisition and disposal of caplal assels and the related
financing for the Goneral, Water Uity and Sower Uity capital furds,

Reszerves fund: Reporls the assets held for specific future requirements. These funds
are governed by bylaws defining their purpose, and are funded
primanty By budgeied contnbubans tsom the current Tund plus infonest
carnod on the reserve balances.

') Budget:

The budget is pan of the stalutory five year financial plan acopted by the Regional District

Board and rellects the anlicipated revenues and expendiures for a given yaar. The budgel
is prepared on a basis consistent with that used to report the actual results achiewved.

i Rewvenue recognition:

Sources of revenue are recorded on the accreal bass and recognised in the penod in
wihich they are earned. Unearned revenue in the curreni period is reported on the
Statement of Financial Position as deferred revenue.

o Expenditure recognition:

Operating and capital expendilures are recognised on the accrual basis in the period in
winich they are incurred. Debt principal repayments in the current period ame representad on
i slatement of inancal activbies
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Motes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

1.

Significant Accounting Policies (Canfinued):

i

i}

)

(K]

Accrued liabilities:

Esfimates are required o dalermine the accrued liabilties for wages and benefils payable
and landfill clesure costs, Actual resulls could differ from these estimates,  Adpustments, if
any, will b reflected m he operabons in the panod of settlemeant,

Cash and equivalents:

Cash consists of cash an hand, cash in rEnsit, and cash on deposit, Cash equivalents are
shart-torm invesiments mado 1o obiain a reluin on a temporary Dasis and ane carncd at he
lawwir of cost ar market valua.

Invesiments:

mvesiments includes beth Munigipal Finance Autherity of Batish Calumbia (MFA) poaled
imyvesimanis, Dy wheeth markel based wml values ane allocatod amongst the participants m
the investment pool, and ather leng-lerm investments in secunlies including bonds or
monsy marke! invesimanis, which are carried at cosl

Laans receivable;

Loans recenable are recorded al cost and reduced by the amaounl of amy repayrment in he
year. Interest calculated al the BFA shor term borrowing rate is accrued on lhe
cutsianding balance

Dforred revenues:

Delarred revenuas are 1hase which are recaived in acvance ol the expenditures 1o which
they are associated. They will be recognised as revenue in fulure years when they can be
malched aganst expendilures for the related service of capital projects

Capilal assels:

Capital as=sets for Regional District use are recarded at cost as capital expendiburas in fhe
year af acguisition, Mo depreciation has been recognised in the accounts, The carmying
value of capelal assets & woiten ol when the assels are s0ld o remowsd 1m Senaeda O
whn thay hawe reached the end ol their uselul scanormic lives.,

Inventory:

nventories of supply are valued al cost and classified as non-linancial assets. They are
axpansod in the yaar of acguisition,

Hillside Development Project land costs;

The cost of Hillside Developmen! Project land (Node 12] is comprised of acquisition cosis
and ceveldpment Costs, induding inleres! on bofravang. and athed direc! costs. The cost of
land sold excluding developmen! costs 15 proraled to aach parcel of land on an acreage
basis. Development costs are allocated as incurred ewvenly across remaining saleabls
parcels of land as they z2re incurred, Undeveloped land and waler space leases owned by
the H{-g:::-nﬂl Disingt are recorded at nistancal cost.

42
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Motes to Financial Statements
Far the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

1. Signiticant Accounting Policies [conlinued);
n Government transfers:

Governmenl ranslers are recognised as revenue o expenditures in the period 1hat the
evanis grang rise 1o the ransfar ocsurs.

‘o) Service severance pay:
Service severance pay fo fulime employees hired prior fo 1994 with over 20 years of
continuous service with any B.G. municipally o regional distnet is payabde upon [heir
leavirg the employment of the Regioral Districl. The liabiliy for such paymenis have been
accrued and included in accourts payable and accrued liabilties,

o Trusts under administration;

Public =ector accounting standards reguire that trusts administered by a government
should be excluded from the government reparting entity. The Regicnal Distrcl does naot
have any ascounts thal meet the definiticn of & trust

2. Inwestments:

2007 2006
Municipal Fingnoe Authority - maney market funds 5 B.E19.470 £ 3.421.882
Municipal Finanog Authornity - bond Tunds | 1,189,541 1,153,023
Raymand James - GIC's - 7664 354
Meshitt Burns - bonds ¢ 1,995,740 6,940,432
Raymond James - GIG's 93 4,000,000
Meshitt Burns - GIG's - 1,000,000

§ 11,804,844 % 24175690

Lunicipal Finance Autharity investments are pooled invested funds by which municipalities in
20 can access high cualily investmenis. while maintaining a high degree of security and
|I{“|I_Ill'jl|_!|l Ileres] rales are vanable These meesiments are lon resineled lunds '||_:I|,||:_i||'|r_;|
resanves and developmenl cost charges.,

? Invesiments with Neskil! Bums are in a medsum term note al imlerest rate of 3% matunng in
2008, thes 15 recarced al markel valua., Ths invesimands will Be uged 1o fund the consbruchion af
the Community Recreation Facilities in 2008.
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Motes to Financial Statements
Faor the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

&

Accounts receivable:

2007 2006
Trade 21049117 % 1,260,005
Taxes & user less GaE.832 539,239
Cal e LT H ] 113,581

& 1,M8533T 5§ 2015225

Loans receivable:
The loans recevable amount of 222 257 (2006 - 561.842) includes:

(@ Amounis due $11.911 (2006 - 54323 from specilic properly owners thal relales o
sepair and upgrading o Woodcreek sewage treatment laclities. Collecton of the amounts
from the property owners 1akes place over a fen year period and commenced in 1958,
The oulsianding balance accrues interest al the MFA shorl term borrowing rale,

i) Arnounts due 10,346 (2006 - 518611 Iram spadis property owners that relates 19 the
Woodlands Road Paving Project. Collection of the amounts from the properly owners
takes place over & thiteen year period and commencad in 1996, The oulstanding balanoe
accrues mleres] al e MEA shart lerm barrawing rate

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities:

2007 205
Trade accalmnts 5 2.961.208 3 2209407
Contract hoddoacks 40,203 A7, 283
Oiher Th.026 37 8BT
Aocrued rade 719933 00416
Aorued Wanes 342 GER 537 0RY
5 4.239.035 3 3417180
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Motes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Development cost charges:

Development cost charges repregent funds recaived from developers for the sole purpose of
fundhing the capial cosl of proveding, albenng o expanding waler lacibles o order 0 Sena
gireclly or indirectly. the development i respect of which the charges are imposed. The
cevelopmant cost charges are restricted for the purpose of capilal improvemenis to the waler
sysiem and will be recognised as revenue in fulure pesiods winen the related capial projecis arg
undértaken. Dovelopmonl cosl chargos collected n 2007 amounl 1o 5458924 (2006
2334.840). The amaunt of development cost charges recognised as revenue in 2007 was
f466 574 | 2006 -nil).

Future parks acquisition:

Undar saction 941 ol 1he Local Government Acl, developears ara required |o provide parkland or
pay an amaunt eqguivalent o the market value of tne parkland when subdwviding. The payments
received are recorded as deferred revenue and the use of these lunds is restricted 1o Ihe
acquismon of park lands, The revenee will be recogrised n future penods when addibonal
parkland s acquired. In 2007 543,050 was received from developers (2006 - 3164.281). There
was mo revenus recognised in 2007 or 2006,

Landfill Futwre Closure and Post-Closure Care Cosis:

The Regonal District operates two lardtill sites al Sechall and Perder Harkoue, A5 sel oot n
government legislaton, the Regional District s obligated to fund closure and post-closure care
cosis related o these sites.  The Regionzl Dislricts estimated Babdity for these cosls s
recognised as he landhll site's capasly s wsed, The recarced latality of $285 456 (2006 -
$B54 403) represents the porticn of fhe estimated lolal future cosls recognised as at December
31, 2007. The Regional District has established a reserve 1o fund any lwture landfill closure and
post-closwre care costs. The balance of this resere 88 al Decembsr 31, 2007 5 31 518,164
(2005 - 51,386 648)

The reparied liability s based on estimates and assumptions with respact lo evenls axtending
over tha remaining life of the langhil. The bablity and annual expandibure is caloulated based on
the ratic of usage 10 113l capacity and the dscounted estimated fulure cash flows associaled
with clasure and post closure aciabies. The Sechell andldl sile s expected 1o feach its capadly
im 2028 and the Pender Harbour landfill site is expected to reach ils capacity in 2010, The
reamaining combined capacity of the [andhll sites is estimated at 742,550 cubic meters, which is
73.6% of the iolal capacity, Post closure carg cosls are expecied fo conlnug for 25 yoars
fodbawartd 1R year G Gladurd.
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Motes to Financial Statements
Far the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

9. Long Term Debt;

Authority PuUrpose Maluring Inlerest Rale 2007 2006
Bank Debi
14403 Shitley Macey Park 2007 pFime - 400,250
20,250

MFA Debenture Dabt
444 Gibsons Library 2007 S B50% - 148,005
572 Frald Rd. Admin Buskding 20246 4 BRI 2,852 BAT 2,952,000
5861 Com. Recreation Facilities 2025 4 7T70% 16,117 441 16,721,742
SE1 Com. Recreation Facilities P 4 _AA0% 1,066 859 2,035 200
571 Fleei Maint, Bidg, Expansion 2026 4 a0 383,332 407,000
70 Recycling Wehcle & Equip. 216G 4 BE0% 202,051 221 500
L52 Cakoia Ridge 201§ 4 BB0% 208 260 225 000
=T Egmaont VFD 2035 4 _HEI, 95 GaZ 100,00
592 a11 207 4. 820% BAS, 000
583 Parks Master Plan 2022 4 B20% 1,221,400 -
243 Waler capilal 2007 L S - 23 851
244 Water capalal 2007 5. 500% . 41 220
245 Waler capilal 2007 5.500% . 24 664
25 Waler capital 2007 5.500% - 10,474
202 Water copdal 20048 12.379% 42,4494 BOL308
253 Waler capaal 20048 12.375% 27,592 22147
553 Waler Treatment Plari 2025 4 17T0% 2077053 3,088 673
Various  Debd issued for member 2008 d A%

muripahbes 1o 2031 o 12 35% 9,429 337 10015174

J6.199 323 A6, 146, 758
Capital Leases

LA Leasing Corg,.  Vanows vahicle & aquepmant loasaes 1,651,786 1,331 141
1.651,THE 1,530,141

Province ol BC Del

Marth Pender Water  Waler Gapilal 2007 10.14%: - 15,204

Total long term debd £ ATE51,109 5 37,533,353

rote 9 conbinusd naxl page...
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Motes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31. 2007 and 2006

0.

-nate & continued from previous page

Future principal repayments on existing long term debi:

2008
20049
Zma
2011
Zme
Thereaftar

1086, 0
2,256,284
2,135,521
2,111,528
1.993,602
27,187,076

5 37,851,104

Approved Debl:

Al approved gebl was issued as at Cecember 31, 2007

Tangible Capital Assels:

2007 2006 Dl‘larl-;__]q'_l
Land 5 196,455 5 175 547 L 200,908
Recreational propermy 4256409 3 B3E 712 623,697
General buildings 23,849,129 4 358 551 14,490,578
Ol Buildings 3,980,014 3.831,114 48 300
Firahal land and buildings 1094061 1.038.010 L6, 051
Gorneral squipment 5,944,535 2 652,210 1,282 325
Vehicles 4,113,413 3,859,053 254,360
Firg profechon vehiclas and eguipment 11T 816 3117 E1G
Engingering struciures 4 345167 a2 177 21,490
Waler transmissien and distnbulion systarm 31,296,354 289 E90.970 1,605 384
Leasehald - Pender Harbour Aguatic Centre 270,258 270,258 -
Cilher Assal 16,000 16,000
85,479,411 BT 065 218 18,474,193
Hilside Development Projecl 3,240,380 3405058 35,924
% 86,920,391 F TO4F0.2V4 510,450,117
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Motes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

11,

12

Debl Reserve Fund;

The Regonal District is required 1o pay inlo a debt reserve Tund administered by the Municipa
Finance Autharily of Britsh Columbia (MFA) an amount equal o one-hall the average annua
imstaliment of principal and ivlernast relaiive 1o any borrowing lor 15 own purposas and on behall
ol mamber municipalties. These amounts do nol appear elsawhaere in the financial statamenis.
Al December 31, 2007 the debd reserde fund administered by the MFA on behall of the Regiona
Cistrict and Mmoo mumzipahbes Compnses

Cash Demard 2007 2006

Capnsits Maotes Tatal Tetal
General Operaling Fumd H 2748 5 BOSI2E 5 1,082,454 5 1,008 324
Water iy Operating Fund 7Y BAS 121,700 1449, 3485 416,747
Memiber Mumicipality Debl 205,259 486,147 G91.416 237N
3 O5L7.ZE0 5 1415975 § 19T73,255 3 21498842

Hillside Development Project:

ncleded in the balance of capial fund s & deloit of 1,063 204 1or 2007 (2006 - 51,027,280
witsih represents he shodtall of Tunding for e developrmant of thg Hilsde Development Brogect
lands. The nel proceeds fraom the evenlual sale of lats in the Hillside Developmen! Project will be
used to eliminate the capital fund deficit and all remaining nel procesds will be s81 aside in a
reserve pncer Pam 13 of the Lacal Govesnmant Act, In 2007 and 2006 there were na ks sold

The assels of tha Hillside Development Project are as lollows:

2007 2006
Land leased and land avalabie for sale (a) $ 231103 3 2295179
Frofecied lands - not lor sale {B) 1,109 877 1. 109877

§ 3440930 % 3405056

1d)  Ineludes purchaga, inarcing and development cosis (net ol alher revenuas and racovanes)
() Ingludes demonsgieelion foresh, imerpreanss ane, parkliands and proteciied habitan angas
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Motes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

13

Compensaied Absences and Post-emplayment Benelils:

Sick Pay

The Regional District provides paid sick leave to qualifying employees. This benefit of one day of
sich leave per month aecrues 1o a maseaum of 18 Ciys, Bl s ool westod, WRen (9 masrmen
accumulated sk leave was ntroduced, employees wilh more fhan 18 days in thair sick bank
warg grandfathered. These employess maintained their existing sick hank halancs at the fimea
this change was introduced. However, iheir sick bank will not accrue any addticnal sick leave
cays unlil The bank drops below he 18 day magimom. o 2006 the estimale of the present valeo
cl expecied sick leave uwsags was calculated at 517,874 and was deemed by management o
ot be material and ne accrual was made. The amoun?t recarced for this benefit in 2007 i3 based
cn an actuanal evaluation prepared by an independent firm, and will be reviewed on a pericdic
bazis, The dale of he last actuanal evaluabon was as of December 31, 2007,

RBetirement Pay

A reqular employes who was hired belore 1924 and relires under the provisions af the Municipal
Porsan Plan o enttled o 2 weeks pay for each full year of senece over 20 yoars as a
rabremant gratuity. In all inslances the rate of pay used in the cakulation of the reliverment
gratuily shall be the rate of pay applicable on the last day worked. The amoun recorded for this
benefit in 2007 is based on an actvanal evaluation prepared by an independeant firm, and will bea
resvicnaesd an 4 penodse bags, The date of the lasl actuanal evaluation was as of December 31,
2007,

Accrued Benefit Obligation as at Decembear 31, 2007

2007 2006
Beginnng benafit obligation > 43400 3 34,600
Mon-vested Sick Leave - pasl sanica cost 22,000
Retiremant Pay- past service cost 136,700 8 800
Ending benelit abligaton 3 a0z 00 & 43400

As of Decamber 31, 2007, tha SCRD has partially funded the post employment benefits.

( tatal obligaton 2202, 100, unfunded $145,544)

Ihe sgniicant actuanal assemplions adopied n moasunng tho disincts accruod bonotl labxbiy
ara as follows:

2007
Diseount rates 4.5%
Expected fulure inllabion rates 2.5%
Expected wage and salary increases 2.508% 10 4.5%
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Motes to Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

14,

13

Contingent labilities:

(i) Pension Plan;

The municipality and ds employees contribute io the Municipal Pansion Plan {the plan), a
jpintly trusteed pension plan. The Board of Toustees, representing plan members and
employers, i responsible for overseeing the management of the pension plan, including
imvestment of the assets and admonistrabon of Benalits. The penson plan s a moulbi-amployer
contributory pension plan. Basic pension benefils provided are defined. The plan has aboul
144 000 active members and approximately 51,000 retired members. Active members
incude approxmately 32,000 contnbutors fram 1Gcal govermments

Eveary three years an actuarial valuation is performed to assess the hinancial posilion of the
plan and the adequacy of plan lunding. The most recent valuation as al December 31, 2006
indicaled a surplus af 3438 mullon 1or basic pensicn benctits, Tho noxt valuabon will Be as al
Decembaer 31, 2000 wilh reswlls availabla in 2010, The acivary does nol atbribule porions of
the surplus 1o individual employears.

The Sunshing Coast Bogional Distngt paid $514 488 in employer contabutions to the plan in
fiscal 2007 (2006 - 5458.511). In adddion, employees contributed 3441978 (2006 -
2399 281).

(b} Reciprocal insurance exchange agreement:

The Begonal Distnet s a0 subscnbed mamier o the Monicipal Insurance Associabon of
British Columbia {ihe “exchange®) as provided by Section 3.02 of the Insurance Act aof the
Province of Brfish Columbia. The main purpose of the Exchange is to pool the risks of
liability o as 1o lessen the impact upon any subscriber. Linder the Reciprocal Insurance
Exchange Agreament the Regonal Distnst s assessed a premiom and specific deductbie
for its claims based on population. The obfigation of the Regional District with respect to the
Exchange and'or contracts and abligations entered into by the Exchange on behall af s
subscribers in conneclion with the Eﬂthﬂl'lg{.‘ ang 1N every Case séveral, and not jont and
several. The Hagional Destnct irrevetably and uncondibonally undadakes and agraes ba
indemnify and save harmliess the other subscribers against liahility losses and costs which
the olher subscriber may suffer,

(c) Third parly claims:

Vanous lawsuils and claims are pending by and against the Regicnal Distrct. It is the opinign
ol management hal the amoun al zefflement from these clams cannol be risasarnably
estimated, nor can the likefliheod of iheir oulcomes be known at this time. The final
getermination of these claims s not expecied to matenally atfect the financial position of the
Regienal Disinct, Any ulbmale selflements will be recorded in the year the sefilement ocowrs,

Contraciual Obligations:

The Regional Dislricl has entered inlo variouws agreements and conlract for the provision of
seniaces Ihat edend beyond {he curqent year. These agreements and contracts include

a Task Construction Managemenl Lid, for the combingd confracls [0 complote (e
construction ol the Community Becrealion facilfies, 52,896 000

ikl Direct Dispasal Corp.. Garbage Collection, 5253 620

ic Sicafte Bulkdozing Lid, Landiill Maintenance, 2265 344

50

Providing 40 years of service



Sunshine Coast Regional District
Motes to Financial Statements
Far the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

16,  Expenditures by Object;

2007 2007 2006

Budget Actual Aciual
Splaries, wages and benefils (&) 5 11,000,267 5 10034967 5 RB333.734
Dperating goods and senices 9,866,455 8875965 10,222,900
Intarest on SUHLD dekd 1,556,774 1,419,126 1387 675
Debt repaymants for SCRD (B) 1,600,327 1,651,469 2,320,837
Dent charges for member municipalities 1,103,693 1,103,692 1,037,100
Capital purchasos (o) 23,881,185 18,256,504 8,05/ 9494
Tatal Expenditures 5 48,958 641 3 41,341,788 5 31,760 240
Cat]) mcheders wages arad bene®ts loe camilal prosscts intsmal 1o e SOREL ey amounts are ircloced as capila

purchiases alsimwhor e in IHOSE Salsmeals

b)) ncludes principa’ repayments and actuacial adusiments
(e} o nod inchates wapes and benedits lor cagilal projects intemal 1 the SCR0D, See &) above

17, Dederred Revenue: Federal Gas Tax and Public Transit Agreements

Gias Tax and Public Transit funding is provided by the Government of Canada. The use of 1he
furding is estabsshed by a lunding agreement between the SCRAD and the Union of Babsh
Colurmbia Mumcipalities. Gas Tax funding may be used fowards designated pubhe ransd,
community energy, waber, wastewaler, solic wasle and capacity building projects, as specified in
the funding agreements. Public Transit funding may be apalied 1owards the cost of designated
pubhc ransit progecis, as specihed in the funding agreemonis

Receipls and Disbursements of CWF Gas Tax Funding

2007 2006
Opening Balance af unspent funds b T4 961 % 187 545
Al Amaunt recaived dunng the year 248 433 187 416
nterest Earned 17.514 11,011
Administration Casts (17,514 1,00 1)
Arnount Sp0al an projects (106 130)
Closing balance of unspent funds % 518,244 s 374,961

18, Tangible Capital Assels:

n preparation lor PSAB 3150, the S3CRDO in 2006 undertoock to inventory the assels i| currenly
cwns. This inventory process continued into 2007, In addtion, in 2008 the SCRD will underake
tp preduce a Capital Assel palicy thal will outling the terms and conditions for acquinng and
cispasing of capital assels as well as identifying hresholds for asset classification. The SCRD
will confinue fo 2dd supplementary information including wseful life, remaining life, conditicn and
ceprecialion rates 1o each class of assel. At present no ane class of assets has been completed
and theredore no detaled information is presented.
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Motes to Financial Statements
Far the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

13, Subsequent Events:

On January 1, 2008, the SCAD took over operatons of the South Pender Harbour Walanyorks
District. The aperation of 1his Waterworks District will be combined with the SCRD's current
wialerworks aperabons and wall be prosented in the 2008 nancial statemoents as such, T"IIE.JQ?'
taking on these operations, thae SCED bas acquired 5401 482 of financial assels $1.898.313 ol
rnon-finangial assels and liabilities of $33,778.
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BDO B0 Dhisiwoady 1.1.P Gk Cahedral Place
Charterod Acvountants B25 W Cieorp Srocl
Soarssouver, B Cangela Vil 3L2
Telepliione:  (BlkE) GHR-5421
Telelfn: (GO AEE.5]1 12
E-rnacl: vamcsuy erin s

wivw. blioca

Auditors’ Report

Tea the Chairperson and Directors of the
Sunshine Coast Regional District

‘We have audited the Statement of Financal Position of the Sunshine Coast Regional Dhstect as at
December 31, 2007 and the Statements of Irvesiment in Mon-Financial Assels, Financal Activities, Cash
Flows, ard Changes in Fund Balances for Lhe year then ended and reporbed thereon in our repod dated
klarch 11, 2008,

Cwr audit was made for the purpose of formang an opinion on the consclidated financial statements taken
as a whole  The supplementary informabon incuded in Schadules 1 1o 13 is presanted for purposas of
additional analysis. Such supplementary information has been subjected to the avdding procedures
applied in the audit of the consolidated financial stalerens and, moour opinicn 15 Tady slated, oo all
material respects, in relation to the consolidaed Tinancial siatemaents taken as a whole

The supplemental inlormaton included in the Staligtical seclion has nol been subject 0 audil and
accordingly, we express o opinicn on the informalicn in that sechon

B Doty 48

Charered Accountants

Vangcouyer, British Golumbia
karch 11, 2008

B Durrsoody LLF 5 @ Lisired Liabilvny Parreersiip Fegiceered 40 Of e
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Sunshine Coast Regional District
Statement of Operating Surplus
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
General Fund
General Government Services:
Administration 5 GOESE 182,565
Finance 25,268 al 512
Gengral offices buikding maintenance 26,035 (&.863)
Human resources 114,002) 4,540
Infarmabion seraces B5,.595 ERL e
Feasibility study L2 745 93,378
SCRHD acmimstratan 39149
aranls-in-aid 13,841 18,235
UBCHK / glections, electoral area services 76 16,120
Frotective Services:
Bylaw enlorcement 9,324 14,033
Fire protecticn
Gibsons and District lire prolection 32,151 27 265
Foberts Creek fire protection 39,382 34,273
Halimoon Bay fire protection 1,588 ar, 058
Egmant fire pratection 7,475 96, 799
Emergency felephone - 911 96,841 100,152
Sunshine Coast Emergency Planning 28,637 20,161
Arimal contral 4,148 16,044
Transpariation Services:
Pulic transi 126, TE2) 124,475
Maintananca facility 4,829 35,2101
Woodlands Road - 439
Hegional sireed lighting 9,154 11,944
Local street lighting E16 r47
Ports sarvices 687G 17,823
Environmental Soervices:
Regional solid waste management 131,393) (262 4427
Hofuso collection (113 o6
Public Health Services:
Carmeleny (3, 790] 7.A05
Pender Harbowr health cling - -
Flanning and Development Services:
Heguonal plannang 40,506 46 3049
Rural planning 141,448 140,225
Geographic information 12,5921 4,500
House numbearing 6,847 3,684
Burldmng inspecticn 194,743 2e2 120
Economic development - -
sub Total Carried Forward (nesxt paga) ] S00846 3 1,015,335
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Sunshine Coast Regional District Schedule 1
Statement of Operating Surplus (Continuad)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007F 2005
General Fund {Continued)
Sub Toial Brought Forward (previous page| 5 SO0846 5 10149335
Recrealion and Cullural Services:
WHS facillies asssiance - 1,798
Pender Harbour poal 6,164 7603
School faciliies - joint uss 11,060 1,193
Gibsons and area lprary 29,133 261
MusSaum Sevice - =0
Halflmoon Bay'Boberts Creek library sermvice 2 (570)
Community Recreation Facilities sarvice 277 BRS 2650 291
Comimiunity parks (70,001} 101,445
Baiyele and walking paths 29,182 (22,584)
Fegional recreation programs (10,084) 24,874
Da=aota Ridge recreaticn service {35,614) 53,297
Tatal General Fund 1,133,353 1,424,134
Water Fund
Hogional walor services 19,817 fd 7 ARG
Sewer Fund
Rpqional sower 28111 2810
Woodcrook sowor 130 4. 46E)
Total Sewer Fund 26,241 '1,858)
Tatal Surplus 5 1473411 5 2189661
Current Fund
General Fund Surplus 5 1133353 5 1424134
Equity in inveniory (761,5928) {811,684)
Ciiher 52 874 52872
Hillside 53,0400 33,000
Appropoated surplus 209,304 257 828
Posl Employment Benalits- unfunded (148,544 .
Genaeral Current Fund 234,058 296,150
Walar Fund Surplus 19,817 74T 385
Sewer Fund Surplus 26,241 1,858)
Total Current Fund k> 584,117 5 1, 741697
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Sunshine Coast Regional District

General Revenue Fund

Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Transfers
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

General
Government  Protective  Transpomalion
SEVICaSs Jarvicas SavVices

Schedule 3 Scheduled Schedule b

Revenue
Girants in Beu to taxes 5 50,544 5 - 5 -
Tax requisitions 1,116,810 1832323  1,110627
Frontage and parcel laxes - . 7915
Conditional grants and transfers 42,055 71,056 459,208
Uncondiional grants and transfers 141,000 = =
User feas and service charges . 19,756 607210
Lacal governmeant requisitions
Member municipality debt 1,103,692 - -
Iregstmagnt incomg 231,259 18,135 21,534
Processds from sale of assels . 210 .
Developer conbribulions - - -
Ctiher revenue 124,572 43,7531 59,252
M Gk 373,852 730,336 13,396
Tolal Revenue 3,203,784 2,735 567 2,279,142
Expenditures
Administration 454,556 199,525 2ad, o4
Wages and benelits 2,078,123 676,387 1,548 585
Cperating 1,503 201 751,244 1,513,900
Debt charges - inlerest and principal 1,454,680 231,229 59,303
Capital 485 297 348 086 116513
Internal recaverias [2,611,175) - (1,113,576
Transfers
Transter 16 7 [from) resernas (16,133) 40,729 (27,811}
Transier lo f{from) appropriated surplus (44,274) 614,644 -
Transfer 1o/ [fromjunfunded liabdity - - -
Transfer 1o/ (from) other funds . - (7.000)
Cilher fransfers - - -
(Surplus) / deficit from prior year (356,328) (345,824) (120,219)
Total Expenditures and Transfers 2049 04T 2 516,020 2214 449
Surplus (Deficit) lar the Year 5 254737 5 20547 3 G468
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Schedule 2

Pubdic Planning &  Recraation
Enwiranmental Heoat Development & Culiural
SErYICES SEMAILES SErVICes SEIDES Actual Budget Actual
Sehoedule 5 Schodule 7 Schedule 8 Schedule 9 2007 2007 2006
] 3 % 8 0544 5 21,000 % 25335
474 952 154,406 858,50 5582817 11,140436 11,140,436 10465612
- = - 1,540, 67 1,598,587 1,599,579 1L972416
24,590 24,305 114,017 735231 1,119,933 1.910,128
6.915 - - 2,750 150,665 131.750 133.085
2,570,330 24,072 T2T 368 1,036,402 4,885,139 4,872,711 3,811,862
- . - . 1,103,692 1,103,693 1,037,100
265249 4,536 2026 504,041 B3B. 060 193,190 Q1671
E = ™ 1,089 1,374 8,000 400
a2.013 25 16,650 198,880 495,143 1,038,915 749 955
30,6049 - 1,386,870 2,556 063 2385 018 3602 503
3,155,938 183,033 1638920 10497538 23,653,934 PO TR5 2R3 24 31G.{IE-E_
224 19,777 HO572 =B7 613 2,087,921 <, 0By 530 1.0 7.Far
B78.247 43,734 1,414,620 2,263 548 8,709,244 8,314,472 7038342
1,511,640 112,103 214 BBT 2254 390 B.267. 345 2948 BT B.O3T axs
46,173 - - 1,929,280 3,720,674 3,779,076 4,144,614
73.962 10,987 15447 226 16485071 206035918 7119362
= = (284.867) - (4,008,618) (3,856,931) (3,208.034)
0 466 120 18.025 135,189 165, 586 108,258 112,680
(17,454) - - (12,007 425) (11,454,508) (15,806,484) (2.265.207)
. - - - {7,000) (7,000} B
252 386 (7.505) [441.844) (424,799} (1,444,133) (1,443,692) (791 482)
3.227.444 186,229 1.242 361 10,185,031 22,520,581 23725223 22 BES 940
2 (31,506 & (3090) & 396585 § 232507 5 1,133,353 5 £ 1444128
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Sunshine Coast Regional District

General Revenue Fund

General Government Services

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Transfers
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

General
Adrmirsiralan lices
& Regional Building Human
Baoard Finance Maimenance  Resources
Revenue
Grants in ligu of laxes £ LNh4a4 F - 3 2
Tax requisitions B41.256 .
Froniage and parcel laxes - -
Conditional grants and transfers 2,699 - "
Unconditicnal grants and transfers 147,000
User fees and service charges . . .
Local government requisitions - -
Membar municipality debl - - -
nvesiment income 2512549
Froceeds from sale of assets . .
Developer contributions - -
Other revenue 44 367 350 .
Mew debl ssued 11.178 202,248
Talal Revenue 1.342 3043 380 202248
Expenditlures
Legislative and general government 268 TeA - - -
Adminisiration 227,968 B4,3689 13,031 38,032
Wages and benefits 615434 628,580 130,951 195,603
Operating 504,079 99,061 253,706 147,797
Ueb! charges - interest and principal B44q . 276,521 -
18,410 8821 258,545 =
migrnal Fosoveros {165 18E] (798.425) [FIB,200)  [362.890)
Transfers
Trarster ta f (lvom) rasarsas 16.312] 19.821) -
Transfer to / (from) appropriated surplus e e (48,204)
Transter to / (from) unfunced kabdity
Transfer to / {from) other funds - - -
Cither irgnsiers - - - -
(Surplus) / deficit from prior year (182.565)  (40.512) 8.863 (4,540
Talal Expenditures and Transfers 1.281.445 [24.918) 176,213 14,002
Surplus {Delicit) for the Year % GB0BSB & 25768 £ 26,035 & (14002
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Schedule 3

Begicnal Db
Hogpital UBCM/  Servica
Information Feasibility Gramts  District Elections For Member Total Tatal
Services Shudies In Audd Admin Services Municipalities 2007 2006
8 - - 5 - 5 - 5 - $ - $ 50544 5§ 25335
= (23.464) 273,048 - 25,970 - 1,116,810  1.298543
= = 38,356 o = - 42,055 258,820
. . . . - - 141,000 120,000
= - - - - 1,103,682 1,103,692 1,037,100
- - - : - - 251,259 186,057
= = = 79,855 = = 124,572 113,986
160,425 - 373,852 170,540

160,425 {23,464) A12.404 79,855 25970 1,103,652 3,203,764 3211481

- - - - - - 268,768 235 395
41,774 3915 12326 28449 4,787 - 454,656 407,956
252 980 - - 47,211 - - 1,870,769  * 695 118
84,848 13254 311542 275 27225 - 1,401,787 1272081
TAA1E - . - . 1,103,652  1,454680 21794975
188.521 - - - - = 486,297 244 428
(568.475) : - : - - (2611,175) (1 976.0186)

: (16,133) 976

(6.070) - 10,000 . (44,274) (1.038.725)

(8,841)  (93.378)  (19.235) 1 (16,120 - (356,328)  (166,034)
74,430 (76,209) 298,563  THS936 25897 1.103.692 2,949,047 2655154

§ 85095 § 52745 5 13841 F 3919 § 7885 - § 254,737 § 356327
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Sunshine Coast Regional District

General Revenue Fund

Protective Services

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Transfers
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Gibsons & Halmoaon
District  Roberts Craek Bay Egmioni
VFD VD VFD VD
Revenue
Grants in lieu of taxes s . ] : s : 3 :
Tax requisitions 506,426 351,080 274,870 55,939
Frontage and parcel laxes - - - -
Conditional gramis and transfers - - - -
Unicanditicnal grants and franster
User fees and service charges - 120 = =
Local govermnment requisitions - - - -
Mermber municipality debt . - . .
nvesliment income 8,233 1.561 2,407 406
Froceeds from sale of assets " . 210 "
Developer coniribulions - - - -
Other revenue = - = 800
Miew dabl 13,714 11,220
Tolal Revenue 514,659 356,875 2E8. 707 57.145
Expenditures
Administration 56,840 32159 19,853 2711
Wages and banefits 240,631 67,069 52,686 2,480
Cperating 148,473 136,246 164 672 29,655
Debt charges - interest and principal 42811 82,584 63,374 10,249
Capital 12,785 19,089 15,769 44 300
Internal recoveres = = = E
Transfers
Transfer o / (from) reseres B,233 24,619 v.B62 2237
Transfer to / (from) appropriated surplus . - - 34,753
Transfer to / (from}) unfunded Eability - = : :
Transfer to / (from) other funds . . - =
Cither fransters - - - -
(Surplug) / deficit from prior year (27, 265) (34,273) (37,008) (96, T99)
Total Expenditures and Transfers 482 508 327,493 eB7. 118 49,670

Ll

Surplus (Deficit) for the Year ae 151 B 39382 % 1,959 & 7 ATS
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Schedule 4

Sunshirg
Emergency Cioast
By-law Telephona Emergency Animal Total Teal
Enfargcement 911 Planning Control 2007 2006
3 - b 3 § -

137,161 185,987 202,295 118,565 1,832,323 1,582,012

- . 66,556 4,500 71,056 35,661

325 = - 18,311 18,756 18,757

633 3,462 4434 EBD 18,135 16,278

. - - - L] .

3,000 . 39,951 - 43,751 104,375

. B65,000 B0,402 750,336 #33,736
141,119 Bh4 440 369,645 142 565 2,735,567 2,400,520
19,370 23,584 24 485 20,118 198,521 183,357
91,634 23,034 106,407 92,452 676,393 €08.813
26,615 128,744 Bi,044 A6, 781 2,242 ey
2575 5,169 8,118 15,349 21,230 108,644

. 120,471 135,672 - 348,086 TES, 271
5633 (23,538) 5,444 (5,841} 40,724 18518

. 579,891 . . 614,644 .

{14,033} (100,152} (20,181) (16,044) (345,825) (324,725)
131,795 a7 .e0a 341,011 138,817 2,516,020 2,054,995

3 9324 & 96841 8§ 28637 & 4,148 § 219547 & 345 825
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Sunshine Coast Regional District

General Revenue Fund

Transportation Services

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Transfers
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Public Maintenance

Transit Facilly
Revenus
Granls in bou ol taxes £ %
Tax requisitions 841,565 -
Frontage and parcel taxes - -
Conditional grants and transfers 459,208 -
Uncondilional grants and transfers - -
Lizer fees and service charges BO7.210 -
Local governmeant requisitions - -
Member municipality debt "
Investment income 24 24
Proceeds from sale of assets - -
Un:w-:h:upﬂr contnbufnns
Other revenue 47,849 10,558
Mew deb! - 13,396
Total Revenue 2 055 856 23878
Expann:lilums
Administration 196 558 15,086
Wages and benefits 1.201,184 334,910
Zperating FT2 a4 G664, 526
Debt charges - interest and principal 10,700 48.603
Capital 168,803 48 366
Internal recoveries - (1,113,576)
Transfers
Transfer 1o / (from) reserves 24 24
Transier 1o/ (from) appropriated surplus .
Transter 1o f [from) urdunded liability - -
Appropriated o f (from) other funds 7,000 {14,000)
Cilher transfers - -
(Surplus) / dedicit from prior year (124 .475) 35,210
Total Expendilures and Transfers 2082 638 19,1459
Surplus (Deficit) for the Year 2 (26,782 % 4,829
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Schedule 5
Regional Lecal
Woodland Slreel Slreel Parts Total Teal
Hoad Lighting Lighting Sarvices 2007 2006
$ 8 - : - : 5 -

- 22,454 6,742 139,866 1,110,627 1,145,856
7915 - . - T.915 7.915

. = = - 459,208 1,313,924

- = - - BOT.210 575,870
21,486 21,534 25648

5 E - 846 50 252 64, 002

- 13,396 471,944

7915 22454 &, raz 162,198 2,279,142 &.605.245

4] 4,325 3 2/ B 244,754 230,913

- 353 ~ 12|1d1 1m 1-.'1-?5.“

& 2668 20 568 E49a2 41,717 1,513,800 2181129

- - - - 50,303 29,834

45 345 116,513 506 867
= = = = (1,113,576) (964,438)
- {27 855) (27.811) (7,639

- - - : (7,000)

(439) i11,946) (747 (17.823) (120,219) (57.635)

TA15 13,300 6,126 BS 32 2,214,449 3,485,026

] g 9154 % 616 & TEETE § 64,693 5 120,220
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Sunshine Coast Regional District Schedule 6
General Revenue Fund
Environmental Services
Statement of Revenue, Expendilures and Transfers
Far the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
Hegional Rofuza Tatal Tatzl
Salid Waste Collection 2007 2006
Revenue
Giranls in liey of faxes 3 - 5 5 - 5 -
Tax requisilions 47s 952 474,552 A0z, 700
Frontage and parcel laxes -
Conditional granis and fransfers 24 5a0 24 590 .
Lnconddional granls and Iransiers 6,915 - &8,915 13,085
Lsr fds and sendace chargoes 2,061,756 S0E.574 2,570,330 2237201
Lecal goasemaiant requisiticns =
Membar municipality dabil - - -
nwestment incomes 36,529 38,529 45316
Frocoods from sale of assels =
Doveloper contrbulions u
Crher revanue 42147 5,266 52,013 590,722
Mew debt 30,609 - 30,609 34,161
Tatal Revenue 2677450 518 440 3.195538 2723185
Expenditures
Bdminisiration 183572 A7 449 271,01 235413
Wages anc bansells 69,030 9,220 G78.250 643 661
Crparating 1,472 246 435,304 1,911 640 2038 267
Dbl charges - interest and principal 46,173 . 48,173 14,235
Crapital 73,9452 73,962 35,688
ntarnal recovanss -
Transfers
Transfor to/ (Iram) resorves 9,466 9,466 26,6592
Transtar to / {(lrom} apgropriated Surplus {17,454 (17,454) (12,976)
Transfer to / {Irom} unfunded lability -
Transfer to / (from} other funds - -
Cher translers -
Curplus) £ daticit 180m paor pear 202,442 {56} 253 186 14, G609,
Total Expenditures and Transfers = A ao L8 554 3,227 444 2975 571
Surplus [Deficit) for the Year 3 {31353 % (113} & [31,506)5  |252 386)

64

Providing 40 years of service



Sunshine Coast Regional District Schedule 7
General Revenue Fund
Public Health Services
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Transfers
Faor the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
Fender
Harkaus Talal Tatal
Cometery  Health Cling 2007 200G
Revenue
Grasls in heu of laxes 5 5 . 5
Tas requisions 0818 103,588 154,406 136,688
Frontage and parcel taxes - - - -
Conditicnal grarts and Iransiers
Lnsasndgisanal -jll:;u'll:". and translers -
Usar fees and service charges 24072 24,072 A5 B2
Local governman! requisilions - - -
Member municipality defht - - - -
M EETrEnL Incame 3416 1,120 4,536 3,750
Proceeds lrom sale of assels -
Developer conlrbulions
Ciner revenue 25 25 18,500
Nevw deb
Total Revenusa TE.33 104,708 183,034 182 71
Expendituras
Adminisiration 16,191 3.588 19,7749 16,012
Wages and benefils 49, 734 - 49,734 41,165
Crparating 23,1 95.000 118,101 100,185
Deaol charges - intorest and principal -
Camital 16,000
nternal recovernies -
Translers
Transfer to ! {fram) resanves 6,120 6,120 5,663
Transfer to / {from) appropriated surplus -
Transfer o {from ) wniundad habilicy
Transtor o {Irom ) ather funds
Crkher translers -
(Surplus) ! delicit fram priar yeaar 7505 (7,505) 13,973
Total Expenditures and Translers 21,521 102,708 186,229 75,256
Surplus (deficit) for the Year 5 (&3040 & (3,1940)5 7505

2007 Sunshine Coast Regional District Annual Report

65



Sunshine Coast Regional District

General Revenue Fund

Planning and Development Services

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Transfers
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Regiona Rural
Flarnning Flanning

Revenue

Granis in lieu of taxes

Tax requisitions

Frontage and parcel laxes
Conditional grants and transters
Unconditional grants and translers
User lees and service charges
Local government requisifions
Member municipality debt
Investment income

Proceeds from sale of assels
Developer contributions

Other revenue

Sy chinkil

(i3

100,164 727,576
- 24,305
407 96,349

704

Total Revenue

100,571 g4 534

Expenditures

Administration

Wages and benelils

Cperating

Dabt charges - inlerest and principal
Capital

Intarnal racoverias

Transtors

Transfer 1o/ {from) resenes

Transler to / (from) appropriated surplus

Transter 1o/ (from) unfunded liakbility

Apprapriated to [ (from) other funds
Ciher transiers

{Surplus) / deficit from prior year

19,223 146,149
73,830 617,590
13,321 75,495

2373

&, 704

{46,308) (140,225)

Total Expenditures and Transfers

] JUE, DG

Surplus (Deficit) for the Year

e

40,508 5 141,445
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Schedule B

Eeographic
Infarmation House Building Econamic Total Tatal
Services MNumbaring Inspection Developmeani 2007 2006
5 5 5 % - % : _

- - 40,761 868,501 833,876

= = = 24,305 6,000
7148 23,830 590,635 - 727,369 796,628

- 1,322 2,026 1,382

7o - . - 75 400

14,550 . 1.500 - 16,650 6,331
21,773 23,830 BO2 457 40,761 1,636,926 1,644 627

40 613 3,099 a9 7rd 1,761 310,569 PE4.071
223,203 17,130 482 8BS - 1,414,621 1,268,374
30,789 343 25,920 39,000 214,868 239,295
2614 - 10,967 37,078
[284,867T) = = (284,867) (267.583)
11,322 18,026 12,392
(9,500) (3,6689) (242,120) 5 (441,843) (370,843)

8 882 16,883 07 714 40,761 1,242,361 1,202,784

] 12921 § B947 § 194743 % $§ 396565 % 441843
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Sunshine Coast Regional District

General Revenue Fund

Recreation and Cultural Services

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Transfers
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

WHS Pendar Schog Gibeons
Facilities  Harbour  Facilities & Area  Museum
Assistance Poal Joint Usa Litrary Lanice

Revenue

Grants in liew of taxes & i 5 : % : - - 3 .

Tax requisitions 9857 279,151 24226 591,242 97,841

Frontage and parcel laxes i i i - =

Conditional grants and transters -

Unconditional granis and transfers - - :

User feas and service chargas . 81,933 >

Local government requisitions - - - ;

Member municipality debt . . - - -

Imvasiment Income . 1,063 .

Proceeds from sale of assets - - - - -

Developer contributions - - - .

Other revenue - 1,000 . 60,467 -

Mew debt issued - - - -
Taotal Revenue 9 65T 363,153 2a 226 651,709 7. B41
Exzpenditures

Legislative and general government - - - - -

Administration - 21,804 1,162 30,685 1,142

Wages and banefits - 228,803 13,183 . -

Operating 35000 112,206 (1y #4277 97,200

Dabl charges - interes! and principal 11,455 - 207,435 .

- 5.267 - - -

Inlernal recovaries - -
Transfers

Tranafer &/ {Irom) resemnves {4,198)

Transler to / (from) appropriated surplus  (35,000) = s . .

Franster 1o/ (lrom) unfunded kakaity

Transfer to / (from) other funds - - - (51,0000 -

Citheer fransiers

(Surplus) / deficit from prior year (1,798 (7.583) (1.183) (7.261) (S01)
Total Expendituras and Transfers 0 65T 356,285 13,166 622 576 Gy 841
Surplus (Deficit) for the Year $ - § 6,64 § 11080 § 29,133 %
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Schedule 9

Halmaan Bay Crammunity Diakoda
Aaobterds Creek  Recrealian Ridge Bicycle & Regianal
Library Facilibes Community  Recreation  Walking Recreation Tofal Tatal
SERACH S Parks SR Paths Prograrms 2007 2006
$ - 0§ - % - § . § - 5§ . § - F -
204,613 2746473 1025515 83,861 114137 406,101 5582817 5,155,937
. 1,390,672 . - - . 1,590,672 1,564 20
- - 14,799 20,424 66,794 12,000 114,017 294,625
2,750 <, 72l
- 782,401 43,963 - = 118,015 1,036,402 257,582
501,548 1,425 S04,0:41 623,232
- - 1,089 - - - 1,089 -
- 75,408 58,415 - - 3,500 198,880 353,046
. 165,470  1.221.400 g 1,386,870 2,292,123
204613 5872152 236608 102285 180,93 B42366 10417538 10,547 946
9,514 230,761 175,982 13,995 13,184 89,583 587612 420,016
1,195,866 484 170 22,740 53,778 264,000 2. 263,553 1, 128121
143,527 597,612 516,254 86,120 1 223,751 2,254,387 2,345,544
. 1.600,44% 80,724 20,235 - ) 1,920,288 1,811,528
- 14,732,530 €01,519 41,116 66,794 - 15447,226 5433031
143,108 13.718) 135,189 5h 678
- (12,655,546) 683,122 - - - (12,007,425)  (1,213,506)
51,000 - - . - - - -
6§70  (250,291) (101.445) (53.207) 22,984 (24,874) (424,799) 136,337
204611 5594 487 2436607 139899 1566730 552460 10,185,031 10,117,145
] 2 5 27TTEE5S % (70001} B35614) 3 24492 5 (10,094) § 232,507 % 424797
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Sunshine Coast Regional District Schedule 10
Water Utility

Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Transfers

For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 Budgat 20006
Fevenue
Granis in g of faxes ] . 5 5
Tax requisition . = :
Frontags and parcel faxes 2,047 782 2,020,493 1829319
Granls and athor iranstors 103,059 174,809% 242 933
Lsor I00s and senacs ¢harges &,141,469 2o0aT 527 2028970
Loecal gevernment regquisitions -
Member municipality debi - . .
nvestment ingome 33,306 - 32,562
Frocesds tram sake of assets - - 194 224
Derveloper contribulians 466,574 B30,000 G76,278
Cither revenue 373,845 8 296 183,950
MNew deht - A6, G0 &6 LAG
Tatal Revenue 5166 ETS 5,992 208 5 214 802
Expendilures
Admirsiration 548,238 a8 237 413 752
Wages and banelils 1,119,497 1,477,773 1,705,994
Crparating 1,757,500 2,002,740 1.778 446
Diekl charges - interest and principal 453,427 471 717 S0, 9958
Capital 1,819,057 3,060,859 1434 817
ntarnal recavaries -
Transfers
Transter o/ (Irom) roscrves 169,524 1817424 215,006
Transfar to / {Irom} appropriatod surplus - 54,9092
Transfer to / {Irom} unfunded hability - - .
Chiner tramsfers 000 £.000 -
(Surplus) / Deficil from previous year (4T AES) A58, 44 11 D, SHE)
Total Expenditures and Transfers 5,146,854 5892 208 4 467 417
Surplus (Delicit) for the Year 5 193,817 3 3 747,385
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Sunshine Coast Regional District Schedule 11
Sewer LHility
Summary Statement of Revenue, Expenditures and Transfers
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
2007 Budgal 20085
Revenue
Granls i eu of laxos 5 . 5 5
Tax reguisilion - -
Frontage and parcal laxes 79,640 78,740 75,640
Granis and other ranslers = :
Lsor 1gos and Sendice charges 145,893 150,595 24,13
Local governmend requisiions -
nwesiment income 15,344 15,574
Froceeds from sale of assets =
Olher revenue 110,000 17,740
Total Revenue a50.877 248,075 235,445
Expenditures
Administration 20 563 25 567 27,51
Wages and bansafits 49, 653 67,103 65,241
Gpﬂ'n'in_r} GG 238 105 204 1G9, 20
Dl charges - intarasl and poncipal -
Capital T3.045 133,000 26,675
nternal recoverias - - .
Translors
Transfer to ! {from) reserves 74,2459 {92 BGZ) (11,001}
Transfer to / {from) approprialed surplus - - -
Ciher translars - - .
(Surplus) delicil Irom previous year 1,635 1,858 (40, EBGE)
Total Expenditures and Translers 324 636 248,075 237,303
Surplus (Deficit) far the Year 5 26,2941 & 5 '1,858)
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Sunshine Coast Regional District Schedule 12
General Capital Fund - Hillside Development Project
For the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

2007 Budget 2008
Exponditures
Administration 5 10,132 3 10,11 5 10,5449
‘Wanes and banalils 23 644 24,339 24109
Crpeating expondilunes 89,263 1173 600 8 079
Capilal expsndiures - 135,000
Total Development Cosls 133,039 283,070 102 647
Less; Operaling Revenye
VWater & land leases 64,115 58,800 51,399
Oither revanue 33,000 - -
Development Costs Mel of Revenue (Capilalized) 5 35923 3 FR4ETD 5 51,798
Tax requisilion - .
Land Sales - 234 270
Surplus (Deficit) for the Year 5 355923 5 - L 51,298
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Sunshine Coast Regional District Schedule 13
Statement of Changes in Reserve Fund Balances
Far the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Beg naing Inyvasiment Cantributions Balprce oy
Bylava Purpase Balasnca Farnings ! Tranalors Fogl af Year
Ceneral Gawarnment Saclian 496 (1)
50M Gasaral Sdminsiramsin 4 28,517 & 919 % 705z § 12,184
A58 el buddhre Lpgradas . . . -
495 Bylave erdaroacian vabclo 14 93T 613 5000 20,570
453 Gibamns Witk ce T Bhi B233 - £35.504
A5 Falsts Craeh VFD 41 8R% * 06 27 REE &6, 502
49 Halmgen Bay WFD 62525 2407 5455 0,187
B Egmant VFD . 406 21917 23,317
qe E17 LEOEnorD 94 HaE T A2 2 7000 1,010
493 SCEF capLal ratarsa 4704 444 5000 15,148
495 Arrndl contrs yvahice 16066 389 (10430 6,225
5 Sunghirs Coast Trang? GET 24 - 31
56 Ptz 295355 21 ARG [ | F6T, 406
=1 o Manlenansa Focikty [ 24 E05
515 Prades Hirbour Heallh Clinic 28 419 i ) 5000 34,529
495 Plarning Viehsles 16 F3E 74 E.000 23,100
395 Buildrg Inspecton vehicles 31,487 v AR 10000 42, TES
5o Cammunily Rpcroatesn Facilitios 45531 4218 T30 HEE TED &Y
B Pander Harbour poo 289.E80% 1,069 5267 25,605
53 Cammunily parks 38 104 1 A35 5 144) 33305
Subrtatd Befone Seclion 43901 Spescial 1,281 &34 50 da6 105 674 1430014
Scotion 4551 Special
451 Sechell andbll closurs o b U LE.000 1,069,692
4532 Paondor Harbour Lirdh closuna 00 2aE B 152 &0 00 148 47a
Lens: Labdity for lanchll closwee * |BG 204 1122 053] 150G, 456)
Sub-tatal Sechion 499,71 Specal 22 2a5 G sT 27 055 Sn.Ton
Tolal General Ressrve Funds 1.804.13% BE 863 TEEN 1,969,724
Waler Hevenus Soctian 496 (1)
qEH Wenher ulikSy Capila =G0 ThE [ 164,01 £74, 398
212 ] Marh =andar Waler 2 01% 2015
454 W pbor LSy ‘@nd =Ha 184 128 99,472
Total Waler Beserve Funds ES1. 35 23 455 156 027 BT0.2485
sewnr Hovenien Sectian 436 (1]
A2 Graaees Road olars & 0HE il 2 1hZ
B Greawes Road pland - opsrating : 451 451
EAZ Siinm vakin plard 1.7 06D A 17677
B2 Jolly Fogear plant TESIT F.0ar |F0, T 58913
513 Sone Laovi plant £ 350 fAa0 5B 35,963
12 Lewar Eimy plam] a3 071 7.ah EZ.TF4 147,080
BLE Lo By plard - oparpiing Qe 162
512 Square Bay planl 07 8T T 36 {19, 280) 195,706
EA2 Caarod Foad planl FEAG o2 - 2541
oA Caroe Fgad planl - operaling . 1,419 1,410
512 Caungn Foad plam 15635 GRS - 16,2010
(] Launan Rogd plan] - oppraling 2,013 101E
s12 R Co-housing plant 1 9kE 144 . 4100
604 R Co-houging plant - oparaling 1480 1,482
Tgtal Sorwar Rogared Funds 428181 15348 56,803 2,432
Tgtal Regarvo Funds 5 2911687 § 125807 % 300G, 551 F 3430401

Sechon 9841 (o and B Caplad weeks roseeve furds
1] 'Eu_'anlull propecis, e, macheniny ard equapsrien? ard recdil ol @osting cagelal woks
bl Mackery and equipmen? o manlain sropety and 16 prolect persens dard propety

Secian 49% ¢ Hedpenal resane 1 Foe g aneciliod porpass walkin ihe povwars 8F tha muonicgalily
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Statistical Section

Revenue by Source

2003 20 2005 2006 2007
Grirts in lidna of R L] BB § 26050 8§ 24010 5§ 25,05 8 .544
Tl Pixqursong FASE 013 T AED 296 237 01 10465 B3 11,140,435
Froriags amd pancsl s 0RO 18h M fR=_ KT LI T | L T
Condfcnal granls and Iransiss 4,059 202 2538 334 L 208G 215,45 SRl
Uncond bonal geands and iansiors 120 K] 122,324 122 Hah 120,44 150,655
Uscr feos. and senaon changes 4 078 HiF 4 FdH Fih & 191 & JHL S 252 Bl
Womibe myan gty dobi 1,350 262 1,137,330 036 382 1,050,185 1,103,652
Irrwes Mk oo e 122, 755 173,351 o655 303 J40 508 337 210
Proceocs Inom sakn of assois 16 £645 223,764 1.108 18L 524 1,375
Dy Co0nng HERA S 31,060 38 KK 576.27H 256 574
RN 0w il 1,118,980 458083 616 045 133,115 179,088
Tatal Revenis by Source 5 0412454 1 1 13 1
Revenue by Source 2007
Uncongmona:t grants Member
an "'“'15 ers municipality debt
0.57% 4.15%

User fees and
service charges

27.32%
Conditional grants .
and transfers Investment income
3.15% 3.33%

Proceeds from
sale of assets
0.01%

Frontage and
parcel taxes
14.00%

Other revenue

Tax requisitions 3.68%

0 Grants in lieu of taxes
41.86% 0.19%
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Expenditures by Object

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Salaries, wages and benelns 5 OGA5ITE 5 GTMANT B OFOOTG40 : B333T3 510034967
Ciperaling goods and services L E36.414 6,940 455 8364384 10,222 800 8875965
Diabt servicing: rcludes member
srunazinal ling 2.3008,761 2,091 506 2267 575 4, 645612 4174287
Lapityl assens 8.570,304 2.785.504 S.710.987 B,357.5954 18,255,564
Totai fture

réara

Salanes, wages ang henelils inchades wages for el captal propects, ese amounts anre ncosed o casdal
purchases ssewhere in the stalements

Ol eppapments AClaes prncipal raapments ang acfunng acusiments

Capdal assels does nal includs wages and benahls iy caphial provects infernal b e SEARD

Expenditures by Object 2007

Capital assets
45%

Salaries, wages
and benefits
24%

Debt servicing: includes
member municipalities

10% Operating goods
(1]

and services
21%
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Expenditures by Function

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Gonenal govemman] 1] ZhE3 e § 2144400 % 3.a951831= § 236546 § FA R
Pl e Sla il 1502 Bl 1 405 el 1.a210T 2 27 861 F081
Transporiaton . 0E2 B2 2 53] 636 3,042,274 A5BIEH12 2.333 73"
Eiterananlal Spmvvicns 1007 243 o 2T 4 T SO F O P
Publ: Realth 131 45 1400251 1 el B 173266 187 613
Planrang And cewn ool 1,074,115 1375 004 CRER 159,595 1 REE1TE
Foscreation amd culure i R R 2] 2903 V85 3,064 REL 10,304,752 21,563,104
Wi Lok B &7H TEE AETIATE & BAP RES 5014571 5&08 518
Gawar ubikies R bl 125636 164,203 3,109 240,530
Hilliats D ilpiminn Propect BS, 797 43 169 Bt 474 5,207 A5 G
Wamber Muneipaliy debd payments ¥, 350,502 1.137.230 020 R 1.7, V00 1103 G

FF A5H D40 17 %5 367 1,307,195 A I i 30,600 319
Copltd prinopas | rosparyieent 513, [kleinir] Gi3 A 22E0,8a7 1651 Ads
Totsl Expencure by Funetion  § 22071831 § 16606072 §  29.050.585 §  J1.7E0240 3 41341788

Expenditures by Function 2007

Hillside Development

Project

Sewer utilities 0.09%

0.60%

Water utilities
13.08%

Recreation and culture
52.16%

Member Municipality

debtzf‘)g%r)}:ents Debt prin(::;i%aglt;;epuyment

General government
5.25%

Protective services
4.89%

Transportation
5.65%

Environmental services
7.14%

Public health
0.45%

Planning and
development
4.03%
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Capital Expenditures and Sources of Financing

by bund 2003 T 2005 06 0T
Genpral 4 2 Ray & LR R T ] JHE 6T & AR 16620AN
Warar A E44 TAT 1550 547 2AFRATR 2084874 1R 3H
St 26,675 73085
Appropraled cagedal suphos” 17230 BAT

3 BESAES § 0 280G 3 236D § 0AMBEE 5 18515480

Gineral

Sale of fond assals 1 md 5 B 449 % 1008 % a3 % 1375

Tranghsr bam Sporaleg 457 55 515D a6 736 1.0 515 2011755

Dol parosZ oo 1553 153 157 742 20 883 042 3,602 503 2655063

Devoioper contributons 35000

Tranghe Fom i0S0mis g | 48027 521 442 40,068 151 260

Giranis Thanatons . . . . 158 202

Approgralod Sumpls 2,310,501 1144191
3 20 AT % 1311572 3 31.5-'2.& 5 O.p04.807 & 1E1$.ﬂ'ﬁ

‘Waler

Sake of freed asaals 1 LML % JoME § . H] 106224 & -

Transfa ¥#om Sphming 4 164 440 35 B3 2056 172 2,258,310 1277148

Dbt prococos 474 99T [T 56 000 26,565

Cagrvirloprmin] Co81 chargas . . . 46 S T4

Transhar Fom 1oS0nos e E

B 158154 172§ 2ATHI00 §  1Beapm

Sirweii

Sake of fued assais 5 5 5 5 5

Tranifer ram Sl

Doplot proaips

O mopmient cosi changes

Trangfiyr from msonos - . 2675 TA RS

§  OB6I500 %  T3,085.00

Totad

Sake of fued assats ] Ted4ed & BZ3,7ed4 5 1,138 5 198624 % 1,375

Transfar kom aporating 4 BT LIRS 2.0 80l 3.278.025 0,000 30

Dbt prosciigds & Dad, 195 333 746 20,740 Dd 3 1,020,060 2655063

Do oloprmienri oosd changes 05, 000 LEG HTd

Transfar Som resanes Pt a0 S A TG40 Jaan

Garanis Tanybong . . . 15 30

Approgralod Surpls 2,310,501 11,4481 311

 AgsaEs §F 2Ede §F b0 § paplie F bADEEe

* Note 2005 - sources of capital financing includes $17,995,657 of debts proceeds that will be held in appropriated capital surplus
for the completion of the construction of the Community Recreation Facilities and Field Road refinancing.

Genpral govommens ] 1248 180 & aorad & A2 § desa2) % Al BT
PTehiC vl S8 i tlg A0 AT 154 ETE 2EDOT 755 270 37H D05
Transpoeiahon SemiDes - e 180,133 403 B5B 605,318 117 032
ErmywdryTulrfal fdrundis [k - 24T 12 36,6488 3350
Fublc Haaih . . 16,0060 -
Plarring 8 ok ekooemier 47 151 5E EZT 18578 7 arT 10287
Fecraation & culune Fipte ] El g erory SN AT AL T2 AT
FHaRgat Sera D &L TaT 43 188 &1 433 51 2048 35923
Waler Loty 6 Bl TRT 1589 547 2A2217T2 2,284 BYE 1822 34
Sirwr LUy - - 2867 T3085
5 EES4ERd § ZESIEG 5 5858 843 5 D.400BE2 § 1851589
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Surpluses and Reserves

TG HOE 25 2 0T
Lgsorgbng sorphun H e T P i B T 1aas % &N L 1,1°471
Appeopr atad v ST I HME S0H HIF Fo B R
IrvEndesl i imeniney 1XH B} 0 (£ 10, LERN Y iGN BEH|
Peas Erplormmant Herglds - prlrcios e SR
e dld_Fll T AT IS ATA A ATE A5 ETd
Gt Fand -1 ZESI0T § A18185 ¥ 1Lr7 T8 B I.7ELETT B 5Bl 017
Chwmnd al 3 1058 80§ 20TBEN § 1EF1 a5 § A § 1.5 e
Waler 500 0es . = BEE AET 561 2 BTG EES
bl 317 5 &7k LM A5 & 44 1 E1 e v
_Paserss Furd ] 230800 § 2HIOD § DA § ek § AL
_Depeniogrmaet Gont Charges 8 ™ § L0200 § LMOMO § 10§ 1200880
Fadurm Faras. horpemtaon 5 FEM 5 IROSE WEN § FHGRT § e A0
Surpluses and Reserves
& (HHD 2]
1. 5000 S0
3, D 2D
2 500 S0
2 000 SD
1,500 O
1,005 Sl
Sy P 1
2003 2004 2005 TSba SOaT
B Carrard Pl W vy Furdd
B [ s, ol Crarges 0 F e Paris, B
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Net Taxable Values

2003 2004 005 2006 2007
Larxd 35T 621,859 448 516,521 Self 26 0BG Tal 513326 DEE 104, 764
Area A& Impceemants 1B0 344 BS54 ZOAD19ESS 245111, FEE 2V ITE0OYE 258052406
Toind 537,966,553 551,536,186 1.011 1 157,170
Lard 280,340,751 328 B0, 0E2 407 8 OER G5 453 044 BEE D0 147
Area B Impramants 142 678,453 162 EFO0SR 191 3663MF 210295884 2RO RIS
Total 402,969,250 491470150 594750450  TE1.746.888  880.830.662
Larxd 223 055,500 28D, TEE 40 B2 ED2 150 A58 315 3 575,570,250
Area D Improreamenis 147 210,300 16555150 197750600  2IGG0B000 289708500
Toiad 70265800 ASSE30550 2 SROETITS0 67243391  BOSITEAS0
Lar¥d 130,992, 727 1E3, 484 571 294 161 839 201 330 306 I73 T F0 BE
Area E Impurgmeents 159, 69,673 lgs Fas 1 M 10 St DA 196 2/9 374 20 104 200
Tolad 259 562,400 307,728,750 408117400 487509680 580834135
Lard 276 Ba2 125 X33, 800, 56 417 T47 751 Al AT E1 T GBS 160, B0
Area F Imprcrepmepnts 329 803,801 2431441 .50 a04 582 A1 2HE 30 G 3689 322 0032
Todad B06.691,136  BTE341 857 2 TE2330457 934 043618 1055482 808
Sechall Indian Lard ISAIAES0 43E12400  SITITTO0 62715000 78,609,300
Government  Improvemants PTEEDE00  FEPATS) I0F1TES) 34539750 40.150.350
Disdried Todad £3,074,050 73,741,150 84,015,350 97254750 118,785,650
Town af Lard 179 00,042 211,131,530 208 587 000 B9 263 160 AT0 055 443
Gibsans ImpHcrspmepnis 175407 358 G5, EOG 53] 26,272 5] 252 TATEID 2B TES BTS
355309,300 406737500  522.950.150  £42.000.770 755,825,068
District of Lar¥d 457 558,847 242 525,113 723,579 536 S1EI0E 0 1 1T 016,769
G hell Imgcrspmepnis 402 5E2, 270 444 B2T 445 531,750 137 LA OGE 450 HE2 215512
Total 850,121,077 989,052,558 1,255338.963 1498.169.544 1.827.132.281
Lar¥d 1921, 767,801 2,362 055303 3 06D STE 500 39643952936 4959085213
SCRD Tatal  improvemants 1534 151,755 16909192058 1571045877 F145603.107 330245410
i Lard a,.19% 22.51% 2957 29 057 20 hE%
e change e — ; i
SCRD Total  'MPrOWEMENtS 5, 75% 10,17% 16 62% B A6 BEI%
Todnd 5.54% 17.25% 24.17% H.14% 19.56%
Mel Taxable Values {in millions)
8,000
7.000
&.000
5,000
4,000
3,000
2003 2004 2002 2006 2007
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Tax Contributions by Participating Area

205 2004 2005 2006 2007

Arza A - Pender Harboun Egaani g 10130 5 110285 5 1,1623% 5 15008E3 § 1,391 960
Arizi B - Hallrmaon Bay g4 310 0548 254 1,017 £37 1,353,918 1,424 5TE
Arza D - Robarts Sreek 474,913 1,043,038 1,173,201 1, a4 00g 1. 472061
Arpa E - Elphinsions f45,133 G50, THE B0 993 1,006, 710 1077316
Arpa F - Wost Howe Sound #0454 49 2,145,031 2075214 2,773 Bdi 2750, 764
Destricl of Sacheit TET R TO7 S T T 1,473,154 1616405
Sechelt Indian Govemmiant Clisthict 36,263 B2.253 Ay 146,155 167520
Town ol Gibsong 146 BET 745,085 823103 1,073,757 1,158,434
Tatal § 7432013 5 7409296 5 7,837,010 5 10465612 % 11,140436
tiabe

Fagionad Disiricls da ol o e aulboily 1o @ Progery tees are requisilioned Ireen he Pravinse ard Bembar

Mumicipalmes who arg responsdsle lor coliacion ol Tha taoes

Tax Contributions by Participating Area 2007

Sechelt Indi : Area A
Govce-:ﬁnrienr; Ill)?sri‘rici Town of Gibsons Pender Harbour/Egmont
1.51% 10.77% 12.49%

Area B
Halfmoon Bay

12.79%
District of Sechelt
1451% — |

Area D
Roberts Creek
Area F
West Howe Sound Area E 13.21%
25.05% Elphinstone
9.67%
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Long Term Debt

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
Genaral govammen sendces & i1, 7137058 & 1161843 £ 13953851 ¥ 166315 3,350,510
Profectye senices TR T a9L 517 403, 701 54 091 1,519,220
Ermimanamarial sarvices . 14,843 £hhHE 263,784
TramsOnAtan Seficas - - 41 650 SO0 255 478,145
Recreabon & cullure services 15940 saR 719075 17,548 053 14 295 2508 19, TE2 988
Total debt supported through tax 7,581 876 2297 531 19,413,133 24,181 837 75,374,633
Waner ulilnies 3,210,287 566,765 31,573,203 ¥ 336 341 3,047,133
Mambar municipality dabl LRSE BAT G163.374 9665030 10015178 9439 317
“Total long-lerm capital debl 5 15,448,806 § 12027676 % 31,657,377 $37,503,353 § 37,851,108
DS cansus

Population pstimabes (30 Sials ) 27 338 27 EET Z3.4557 27755 29,781
Dabl par capita 584 435 1,108 1,352 1,2M
Debil per capila F4 104 a05 a1 254
" pciides mambar miuncipality debl
Intaras] on debt’ 283.ME 298 961 581,541 1 387675 1,419,126
Dbl regaymanis” 513 791 810,705 Gl &00 F A0 A3E 1,651 489
Total debt paymenis* 87,807 900 666 1,224,941 3,608,511 3,070,585
* pwcdudes membar muncipaliby debl
Tatal Exponditiungs {oeciud ng injpres) 21067778 16858037 SR TERGEY  2BAST 728 35210453
LT dabt payments as & % of tolal 1.78% 5.40% 539% 12.62% %
Legal debt limit Mol Applicable 10 Regional Disiricis
Long Term Debt (in millions)

40 DA O Gasrears) -pasd

_I'_. m b‘ll

0D O ater Undmes - padd

L s
265 00
2000 W has e BAomecpal y
paed by Mgy
1500
10 00
.. D:l .
B 2004 005 b 007

2007 Sunshine Coast Regional District Annual Report

81



2006 Census Profile Sunshine Coast

Sumahing Coan
Tatal papuilation
Lo of My 18 210025 o BT
SFane of Bt Columisds 0

2001 Cermus Popalabinn

Total @walbrgs
Turrcasrehsd

Summary

nc

(a8 of May 15 20015 o5 b 1]
P chamge TH - 308 L 53
Land anrca 2006

(VL] 1 TR R

Em” Fod A%
e e bl dwnlings

(TR T 124 L

15 4T | TEE LT

rdnhing Chand no

Total papeiladacn JTTRT 41!7%4R%
oLl &
F prmamhi e bl

= ]. 0]

Households

nunshing Coant L3
Frivate hoamehaida 12,181 el
L By B
RAE- Ll 1"
[ Sl L 1¥%

Househo'ds by Size, percent disinbuton

D Baanmiry T

=

A s

QBG

'TEELLERE-N

B

Marital Status & Families

ﬁ:hp-ul-oﬂ 15+ years

L e |

Id'_, ally T F,
bl L p ] L
Doy s 1

Wirddowad

Canasus Famikes by Shichie

L ommen-Lyss cod ke 1,780 1

itdmat chebd® ai

T v,
Wivh cheldrmn® o hanimas L= |

BRI T |:-l|'l-'|: LR TRE 1 s
KLt &2 E
F o= an e prd TR

chale chaldrmn® - dedresd an were arsiior dasghlees

i e

[

muhera Loasd
Avarags valsa ol owrar-nocupaed
privabe Gl leragep

Oetupied dwallngs
Fpquiss marfsrane
Fioguarn mincs repars

LT TS e fLaTy
Tinant househoidh. nondem, nos-roser,
prrvaln dwal g
PR TR IGAS M

Doron. el mpepncng M8 or moes of
T FPCTl O reEi

Aok raiid 30 b FD

Crwmen housshoids, non-lamm, ran-reserse
periwabn chaasl linga
P Tagal Dol 'S Vil
Sy el
Chaiae' e Sl wiTesdith dfaslnsd
e o mare of hh mcoers
Laal ol
P asiis 30 10 5%

Mumtsar, census Bamilies 5 0a 1961 43
Husland wile famios p s
P =¥ "|'|:| Add £
& d

T Tl

Susnhine Coand HC

el I T B BT g
Ireng 07 Fama
Tobal resrmba 6RO 1307 n4d
Fuyd . DT EnSLs tamely na

Chilcren® by Age, percent dstribution

D) Bt Cuirid [s]- .4
L=
4 r
-
n
]
)
18
1
: o]
0
e L1 150 1 -1
raier 14 i Fo years
[

Ccsupind prisale

dwelings 12 BES E
Al LEDET OF IS a5 LT ]
o e oF bedimom Fa-

Farnorms in peie Boasssholdy 2T B0 & et 1
Arvr B perecnatecuschoid i

Cesirin, Cravelings oy Sirucham
Dfubpct DG () il

Type
FUO I R

Sirgis Satnciud | ]
Tl Tt b

CEpR.
g, Dupies
et fe vy
o sy By

et singla afiach

m—uu.mi'

sunahing Coant -2

PErgorts i D houbehosds 27,160 f ek )
ﬁwdl-'il i nidar 5 34% LR
-"'|..-\.|.- M, [P
Heon-lamely persora MR 4
Finraly i O, [

Percert Dislnbution, Liveng Arrangements of
1,570 Nan-lamily Persons Aged GO & CHades
n Surshine Coast, CD

Bifurahea Coas an:

cEHHBEEELEE

Cherppind privale

dwalkrge 12,185
Cveuindd a1
Foarted o
Bgradl higamsng [ri

Paricd of Consinclion, parcant distibyton

Oifurnhea Coas on:
28
. N
L]

-glllDDlan

Delore 1he3- TEI- WT1- 18- 105E- TRH- TEE- 0E-
1 TE0 WO (D IRES TR0 TR 0D o

Locbune by Bl Sl ames el g b

82

Providing 40 years of service



November 17, 1986

R,
'~.l-ujl.,_‘
P

S
e s
—— i,
s il ol oy

" s e s
‘-‘—l- T ..k.‘..,
» o e B g 7 Wsniisd s
s P g s e
o 5 = X o Ty ~yer,
S s i i o [ ] l'.-,.~.-—.--l P
Skl st 4 S entnd s Vvt g
LT B e = = T2
A iy T -~
e = el Wy -
. ol = ey
s H-"\r-—._.
o aical apnn, o b
= = Reions
=% Womtend I Snsinn,

=S o
‘l'hpp__,.,..—-_ d-
S P o bl o

Bamal | Y.

[ .
L - . p
. . . e,
v . veoo e AR
h - v, L
' . [

June 10, 2005

Ty, ...

December 10, 1990

Watershed crisis

nat logging

e
FRL -




April18, 1988

Eszentially stand pal

SCRD budget stable

The = Bl ey e che L L T I R

LTI T L B L LR [ S
R | ICLEC T B AL
rer b ¥ el
LRl my g = Il w3 lira sar-amwa .
L L BRI ot ke - e 17 0,
FLITRCTN FEHIT T IRt 1 | LN L L T ' AT |
T L L L B LT P 1 caaa=
LREA ELPR . SO0 =tam o=l Tl Lt
.- LI 5 BT R U
EL ] B e RIC UL
O L TR LT P e
-1 oo I
12 =lpe -0 raetzu oo RRRETLY | LI RO
by e RLE]Y e g natt o LR
v el o a L oeead et g

ol

e L O PRI T
gl W = e - e
1ok s wbms lygmase nn s, RPN

taxas
Report said misleading

of R~ " L L T ' LA P

fttamr Ll ar mimn o o
a2t o el e

B

T e T L LP LR %
" PR TR H
r T
- R T

Sept. 27,1972

Band invited

G £ oy F‘I‘l
reopnae et ol i
r: 4 B LEt ][L:;l:.:-
T“ u"l ik cpparreaTiny |h4"__a. g
e Hand v o
|:‘;.|:l'. X ":'l‘":n-‘.‘. e s
(AR i) i

.

(e angeaanl Veme )

by T ke
cpe Trenis ol 2 Jutne§ o

D S d- PN R ]

pear 3 >

; VL LR -

o Ligad

. B -|. al

naal

Dec. 23, 1970

1h-tral hra [H ]
n HLE BN R L |
L N i LT
LRl SimE
H LI e T
My e B

M2 8% in

1 RS afah Tapr

N e S vk 2adeiin b

Muim! learme 2 072

Statement of Resulls of Fleglion and Submissions
Election — December 12, 1910

e [

sTETIHIAD DOAANCT

LH I iard
A, = - IPRr
vars.m 1w Cerenal

[[H

R L TRV
L dera, BTl mw oy,
EL LA P
Lt BRI,

T S cmee o,

UL H 1M CompsTm

e o - q
e ],
e g = b

LLTT T
i LTI TP

W T

T T
LT - e
alyca 'l:n.a-.-"t- L3t Pbbdmm

LIPS .

il L g g e
MM Aaat Y o ey, Im ...-_cr" 5
il JUITF PR

N oaag
[EI T U Ramm g
-

el 3L ° (el iy
. LIRS I * ATy,
ey N P

e ™ PRTEN 0E prver

T e e,

okl nb
T kaed g

B

-ﬁ = L] L] . pt
HINE ) as) REGIOY A, ISRy

o wrraild e pReeal 1o
-d-“ |::. [TRRTE B L I
" --'--!‘-'r.‘:l. 3ol

ML WiTE

Thi Rt o
-hm. Y R e

Lt 1 mtee yr,n —ais g
e TN g et gy
Hray oy R O P

7 yum

L]

T e,

- v Ly
[T S Rl 'r-:.m-

N T 0 el Dy
i R
Rrdecocagus g b g sl
bnme—cag o Nomtm b ,;';'"‘
e WALTY - emmy g
bnrneia 4o o

RE gy

ﬂTHﬁu“ﬂl!
:l_nj\: L L T
RELE e v T
Ty '._pq ek 1L F T L
4ol Ll L TLIFEE. Sy —ad o4y

g Hoon lncar b ey = v

e g s
P

e .

, ATt Tantyo' e g,
-.:'." bl

N e L. T e £ I Ky
a Ll

DR P i

Al REFTTRTEE

a rea
SIS pnd-::u,:.

LR I N s v

UM P weg, L,

! oellagr, gy, )
e h [ K
"_:"'N"ln._ul:l.. P2 N ey
e e T ey
G o w0 Mrodmt g, e oo
- -

Pares gy
Lof T

e

Printed on 30% post-consumer recycled stock



